
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

Special Presentation Meeting 
Tuesday, May 3, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATION: 
 
    
 a. R2022-026: A Resolution honoring the life and service of Jacky Hunter; and other matters related thereto. 
 

Hon. Cindy Wilson 
 

b. R2022-027: A Resolution to proclaim May 15-21, 2022 as National Public Works Week; and other matters 
related thereto. 

 Hon. Tommy Dunn 
 

3. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, May 3, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER     
 
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                    Hon. John Wright, Jr. 
 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                                                                                                               April 19, 2022 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, May 3, 2022 
 
Page 2 

 

   
 

 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                         Non-Agenda Matters    
 
 
5. ANNUAL REPORT ON APPALACHIAN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS SERVICES TO ANDERSON 

COUNTY 
Mr. Steve Pelissier 

 
                                                                                 
 
6. ORDINANCE THIRD READING:  
 
   a. 2022-008: An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 

20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 5.39 acres from R-20 (Single 
Family Residential District) to R-10 (Single-Family Residential District) on a parcel of land, identified as 5.39 
acres on Evergreen Road in the North Pointe Precinct shown in Deed Book 15843 page 00246. The parcel is 
further identified as TMS #144-00-06-005. (District 4)  

 
Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

 
  b. 2022-013: An Ordinance to amend Chapter 38 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, so 

as to provide for drainage and utility easements to convey stormwater and provide for location of other utilities 
in developments within Anderson County; and other matters related thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE 
MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

 
 c. 2022-014: An Ordinance to approve a ground lease agreement between Anderson County, South Carolina and 
      Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC for a portion of Tax Map No. 122-00-01-001, The Civic Center parcel, for location  
      of a battery storage system project; and other matters related matters. (PUBLIC NOTICE HEARING THREE 

MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 
 
 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 
7. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:  
 
   a. 2022-012: An Ordinance authorizing (1) the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax and incentive agreement 

by and between Anderson County, South Carolina (“The County”) and one or more companies collectively 
identified for the time being as Project 81 Logistics, acting for itself or themselves, one or more affiliates, and/or 
other project sponsors (collectively, the “Company”), pursuant to which the County shall covenant to accept 
certain negotiated fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to the establishment and/or expansion of certain 
facilities in the County (The “Project”); (2) the benefits of a multi-county industrial or business park to be made 
available to the company and the project and the distribution of revenues generated from the project with the 
County; (3) certain special source revenue credits in connection with the project; and (4) other matters related 
thereto. 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, May 3, 2022 
 
Page 3 

 

   
 

 
    
   b. 2022-016: An Ordinance authorizing the transfer of real property located at 1299 Three and Twenty Road, 

Easley, South Carolina (TMS NO. 163-00-09-008) to the Three and Twenty Fire Department trustees; and other 
matters related thereto. 

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
    
 
   c. 2022-017: An Ordinance authorizing the transfer of certain real properties located at 204 West Poplar Street, 

Iva, South Carolina (TMS 133-04-01-003); 57 Oak Street, Iva, South Carolina (TMS 133-02-06-003); and 717 
Central Street, Iva, South Carolina (TMS 134-00-06-017) to the Town of Iva; and other matters related thereto.  

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
   d. 2022-018: An Ordinance to provide approval for Anderson County to grant a perpetual and non-exclusive 

easement unto Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC upon a portion of the real property being Parcel A, 0.192 acres and 
Parcel B, 2.96 acres, as recorded in Plat Slide 1273, pages 5 and 6, Anderson County Register of Deeds for 
electric car charging stations within the City of Belton; and other matters related thereto.  

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
 
8. ORDINANCE FIRST READING: 
 
   a. 2022-019:  An Ordinance to adopt the operating and capital budgets of Anderson County for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2022, and ending June 30, 2023, and to make appropriations for such Anderson County 
budgets for county ordinary purposes and for other county purposes for which the county may levy a tax other 
than for Tri-County Technical College purposes; to provide for the levy of taxes on all taxable personal and real 
estate properties in Anderson County for such county ordinary purposes, including sufficient tax to pay the 
principal and interest on outstanding indebtedness of Anderson County maturing during said fiscal year; to 
adopt the operating and capital budgets of Anderson County for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022, and 
ending June 30, 2023, and to make appropriations for such Anderson County budgets, for Tri-County Technical 
College; to provide for the levy of taxes on all personal and real properties in Anderson county on which school 
taxes may be levied for such Tri-County Technical College purposes; to provide for the levy, assessment and 
collection of certain other taxes and fees; to provide for the expenditure of said taxes and other revenues coming 
to the county during said fiscal year; and to provide for other matters relating to Anderson County. (TITLE 
ONLY) 

 
Mr. Tommy Dunn (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

 
    
 
9. RESOLUTIONS: 
 
   a. R2022-028: A Resolution to request and support that the South Carolina General Assembly grant municipalities 

and counties the authority to issue building codes in addition to existing statewide building codes or amend 
building codes adopted by the Building Codes Council; and other matters related thereto. 

 
Ms. Cindy Wilson (allotted 5 minutes) 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, May 3, 2022 
 
Page 4 

 

   
 

 
 
10. CHANGE ORDERS/BID APPROVALS: 
    
   a. Change Order for 2022 Pavement Marking Contract 
   b. Toxaway Riverside Mill Site RFQ #22-041 
   c. ACTC #125 Resurfacing Bid #22-048 
   d. King David Expansion Bid #22-051 
 
 
11. SYRACUSE ROAD SPEED HUMP REQUEST 

Mr. Matt Hogan 
 

 
 
12. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
  
 
       
 
 
13. CITIZENS COMMENTS               Non-Agenda Matters 
 
 
14. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 
or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 
contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION 2022-026 

A RESOLUTION HONORING THE LIFE AND SERVICE OF 

JACKY HUNTER; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County Auditor Jacky Hunter recently departed from this life, leaving 
behind a community of family, friends, and neighbors saddened by his loss; and,  

WHEREAS, Jacky was, without a doubt, a true Anderson institution, having served for many years 
as the county’s Election Commission Director and Finance Manager prior to assuming elected 
office; and, 

WHEREAS, no matter what position he held, the citizens of Anderson benefited greatly from his 
sharp financial acumen and intuitive sense for numbers; and  

WHEREAS, Jacky was known by his colleagues for his efforts to provide vigilance and oversight 
on behalf of the taxpayer, for whom he left no stone unturned in his mission to ensure accuracy 
and strict adherence to the laws governing the duties to which he had been entrusted; and 

WHEREAS, Jacky will be long and well-remembered by his colleagues and constituents, and 
though he will be missed we take comfort in knowing he has received his Eternal Reward; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby celebrates 
the life and service of George Jackson “Jacky” Hunter Jr., a true friend to us all. We extend our 
sympathies to his loving wife Janis and their family, and thank them for providing Jacky with the 
support he needed to serve our community. He will truly be missed.  

RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 3rd day of May, 2022. 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY:  
 
________________________    _____________________            _____________________         
Tommy Dunn, Chairman                John B. Wright, Jr.                        Glenn Davis 
 District Five       District One                                   District Two 
 
 
_______________________        _____________________           ______________________ 
Ray Graham                                  Brett Sanders                                Jimmy Davis 
District Three                                District Four                                 District Six 
 
 
_______________________         ATTEST:                                    ______________________ 
M. Cindy Wilson                                                                                Renee Watts 
District Seven                                                                                      Clerk to Council 
                                                   ______________________ 
                                                   Rusty Burns 
                                                   County Administrator 





State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

APRIL 19, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS
GLENN DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
RENEE WATTS
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - April 19, 2022
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   I’m going to
2 call the special presentation meeting of April 19th,
3 2022 to order.  I want to thank everyone and welcome
4 everyone for being here tonight.  We’re going to start
5 with Resolution/Proclamation 2(a), R2022-024, a
6 Resolution supporting the South Carolina American
7 Revolution Sestercentennial Commission and recognizing
8 and approving the Anderson County 250 Committee; and
9 other matters related thereto.
10 WHEREAS, the mission of the South Carolina American
11 Revolution Sestercentennial Commission (250th
12 Anniversary Commission, also known as SC250) is to
13 celebrate and promote South Carolina’s role in the
14 American Revolution by educating, engaging, and
15 inspiring South Carolinians and visitors; and
16 WHEREAS, the SC250 Commission is seeking
17 partnerships with counties and municipalities to
18 further its mission by forming local committees to
19 further its mission; and
20 WHEREAS, the Anderson County 250 Committee will
21 focus on important events, people, and places during
22 the Revolutionary Era within Anderson County to
23 promote, observe and celebrate Anderson County’s role
24 in the American Revolution by educating, engaging, and
25 inspiring South Carolinians and visitors, thereby
26 enhancing historical tourism opportunities.
27 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County
28 Council, in a meeting duly assembled this 19th day of
29 April 2022, hereby recognizes the Anderson County 250
30 Committee as its official committee, will partner with
31 SC250, and will support initiatives of the SC250
32 Commission, including above-mentioned efforts to
33 enhance historical tourism opportunities in Anderson
34 County.
35 I put that in the form of a motion.  
36 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
38 Wilson.  Any discussion?
39 This come from the governor’s office, asked us to
40 put this and participate.  And I think it’s a great
41 idea and a great thing.  So we want to make sure we get
42 out part and get our story told what Anderson County
43 done as part in that thing.  Any more discussion?
44 CINDY WILSON:  May I?
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am, Ms.
46 Wilson.
47 CINDY WILSON:  After all,
48 South Carolina played a huge role in our country’s
49 liberty.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   They did, and



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - April 19, 2022
3

1 Anderson did, too.  We want to make sure we tell the
2 story that Anderson done.  Anyone else?  All in favor
3 of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
4 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
5 Let the record show that Mr. Graham, I believe,
6 texted earlier; he’ll be here but he’s going to be a
7 little bit late.  He’s taking care of a constituent
8 issue I think down at the Annex.
9 We’re going to move on now to item 2(b), R2022-025,
10 a Resolution congratulating Split Creek Farm for
11 placing first in the United States and third in the
12 World at the World Championship Cheese Contest; and
13 other matters related thereto.
14 Be Vice Chairman, Mr. Brett Sanders.
15 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
16 Chairman.
17 THIS IS A RESOLUTION CONGRATULATING SPLIT CREEK
18 FARM FOR PLACING FIRST IN THE UNITED STATES AND THIRD
19 IN THE WORLD AT THE WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP CHEESE CONTEST;
20 AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.
21 WHEREAS, Split Creek Farm, a Grade A goat dairy
22 farm located in Anderson County and co-owned by Jessica
23 Bell and Sandra Coppage, has been producing artisan
24 goat milk products for more than 30 years and operates
25 as a true farmstead operation, raising animals on the
26 farm to produce the milk used in making products
27 on-site, by hand; and
28 WHEREAS, the World Championship Cheese Contest, the
29 world’s premier technical cheese, butter, and yogurt
30 competition, has been hosted by the Wisconsin Cheese
31 Makers Association biennially since 1957, and was most
32 recently held March 1-3, 2022, in Madison, Wisconsin;
33 and
34 WHEREAS, at the 2022 World Championship Cheese
35 Contest, Split Creek Farm placed first in the United
36 States and third in the world, scoring a 99.25 for Feta
37 marinated in Olive Oil with Sundried Tomatoes and
38 herbs;
39 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County
40 Council, in a meeting duly assembled this 19th day of
41 April 2022, hereby congratulates Split Creek Farm for
42 its success at the World Championship Cheese Contest
43 and thanks them for doing Anderson County, the State of
44 South Carolina and the United States proud.
45 I put that in the form of a motion.
46 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
48 Mr. Sanders and second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?
49 BRETT SANDERS:  Mr. Chairman.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Sanders.



4

1 BRETT SANDERS:  With everything
2 -- all our corporate farms and things that we have
3 going on now, it’s nice to see that a family ran small
4 farm can compete at a level this high.  I mean, it’s a
5 testament to the hard work and time that’s put in.  And
6 evidently, you’re doing the right thing and it’s
7 showing.  So we appreciate you.  And I appreciate you
8 guys being in Pendleton and in my district.  Thank you.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   I’d just like
10 to say, too, I appreciate what all y’all do.  Y’all
11 represent Anderson County well and the farming
12 industry.  And I think this is not the first big
13 recognition y’all have received; is it?  This is one of
14 many.  Something to be very, very proud of.  And keep
15 up the good work.  Appreciate y’all very much.
16 Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion show of
17 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
18 unanimously. 
19 Y’all step on up.
20 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
21 APPLAUSE
22 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time
23 that will conclude this part of the meeting.  We’ll be
24 back and reconvene at 6:30 to start our regular council
25 meeting.   
26
27 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:09 P.M.)



5

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

APRIL 19, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
GLENN DAVIS
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
RENEE WATTS



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
6

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time
2 I’d like to call the regular Anderson County meeting to
3 order of April 19th.  I’d like to welcome each and
4 every one of you here tonight.  Thank y’all for coming. 
5 At this time I’d like to ask Councilman Vice
6 Chairman Brett Sanders if he would lead us in the
7 invocation and pledge of allegiance.  If we’d all rise,
8 please.
9 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
10 Chairman.  Let’s bow our heads.
11 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY BRETT SANDERS
12 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to
13 move on to item number 3, approval of the April 5th
14 minutes.  Are there any corrections to be made to those
15 minutes?
16 CINDY WILSON:  May I, Mr.
17 Chairman?
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
19 CINDY WILSON:  There’s just a
20 typo on page 5, line 27, seems like seconds are hours
21 instead of or hours.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.
23 CINDY WILSON:  And that’s the
24 only change that I have.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else
26 have anything.  Ms. Wilson want to make the motion to
27 accept the minutes with that change?
28 CINDY WILSON:  May we accept
29 the minutes as presented with that one correction.
30 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
32 Wilson; second by Mr. Sanders.  All in favor of the
33 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
34 motion carries unanimously. 
35 We’re going to move on now to item number 4,
36 citizens comments.  This first go-around is on agenda
37 items only.  And you have three minutes.  Address the
38 Chair, please, when Mr. Harmon calls your name.  And
39 please state your name and district just for the
40 record.
41 Mr. Harmon.
42 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman,
43 no one is signed up to speak at this time.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  We’re
45 going to move on now to item -- before we get any
46 further, I’m sorry, we’ll do a little housekeeping. 
47 Mr. Harmon, do you want to introduce your new protégé
48 who’s helping you?
49 LEON HARMON:  Yes.  I’d like
50 to introduce to Council Jordan Thayer.  Jordan is the



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
7

1 son of Dr. Mark Thayer and Representative Ann Thayer. 
2 He is a West Virginia Law School graduate.  He’s been a
3 law clerk to the Honorable Lawton McIntosh and has also
4 worked as an assistant solicitor.  And I, of all
5 people, am glad to have him here.  
6 TOMMY DUNN:   I bet you are. 
7 Welcome aboard to Anderson County.  Yes, sir.
8 We’re going to move on now to item number 5, third
9 reading, 5(a).  This is going to be 2022-004, an
10 Ordinance to amend Section 38-311(C) of the Anderson
11 County, South Carolina, Code of Ordinances to add an
12 additional subsection to establish a time frame for
13 consideration of previously disapproved projects by the
14 Planning Commission; and other matters related thereto. 
15 Mr. Harmon, would you mind just explaining this
16 just a little bit?
17 LEON HARMON:  Yes, Mr.
18 Chairman.  What this Ordinance would do is once a
19 project has been to the Planning Commission and has
20 come back a second time, it would then require that the
21 project wait six months before another preliminary plat
22 may be presented to the Planning Commission regarding
23 that project.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
25 Harmon.  This is going to be a public hearing.  Anyone
26 wishing to speak to this matter, please step forward,
27 state your name, your district and address the Chair,
28 please.  Anyone at all?
29 FEMALE:  (Inaudible.)
30 TOMMY DUNN:   On this matter?
31 FEMALE:  (Inaudible.)
32 TOMMY DUNN:   No.  You had to
33 sign up -- you sign up for agenda items and non-agenda
34 items.  Agenda items is at the front of the meeting and
35 non-agenda items are at the rear of the meeting.  So
36 you’ve got something you want to say on this matter?
37 FEMALE:  (Inaudible.)
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  Well, if
39 you do, I mean we can let you come up here and say
40 something if you’ve got something you need to say on
41 this matter?  Oh, is it on something else or is it on
42 this matter?
43 FEMALE: (Inaudible.)
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  Right
45 there.  Rusty, help her.
46 DOLLY MERRITT:  Okay.  I came
47 to a council meeting ---
48 TOMMY DUNN:   State your name
49 and district, ma’am, please, for the record.
50 DOLLY MERRITT:  Okay.  My name



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
8

1 is Dolly Merritt and I’m from Powdersville; Jimmy
2 Davis’s district.  I was in a Planning Commission
3 meeting months ago and the matter came up about the new
4 subdivision across from Concrete Elementary.  And it
5 was voted down.  So is this ordinance now saying that
6 it can come back two times after being voted down?
7 TOMMY DUNN:   It keeps it
8 from coming back up after it’s been.  This Ordinance
9 won’t affect that one because this Ordinance is not in
10 effect yet.  It takes three readings.
11 DOLLY MERRITT:  But I’m saying
12 once this Ordinance goes into effect ---
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Once this
14 ordinance goes into effect, there’s a time frame, you
15 can bring something up twice.  Once it fails twice, it
16 has to have a grace period before it can come back up. 
17 Well, now as it is, you can just keep bringing it back
18 up, keep bringing it back up.
19 DOLLY MERRITT:  Gotcha.  Thank
20 you for explaining that.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am.
22 Anyone else?  Seeing and hearing none, public hearing
23 will be closed.  Do we have a motion to move this
24 forward?
25 RAY GRAHAM:  So moved.
26 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
28 Graham; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  Hearing
29 none, all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
30 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
31 unanimously. 
32 We’re going to move on to item number 5(b),
33 2022-009, an Ordinance to provide for the creation of
34 the River Oaks Special Tax District; to establish the
35 nature of services to be performed therein; to
36 designate the uniform service charge in the River Oaks
37 subdivision special tax district; to provide for the
38 operation of the River Oaks subdivision special tax
39 district; and other matters related thereto.
40 This is saying to them to bring their roads up, it
41 has to be signed by, I think, seventy-five percent of
42 the people that lives in that subdivision.  This goes
43 on our tax bill to pay a bond to get their roads
44 brought up to county standards because when they was
45 brought in -- when the roads was built they didn’t meet
46 county specs and they wasn’t took in the county.  This
47 is to keep everybody from coming in and having been
48 shoddy work.  But this is what this is about.  Do we
49 have a motion to move this forward?
50 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
9

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
2 Wilson.  Do I have a second?
3 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
5 Jimmy Davis.  Now any discussion?  Seeing and hearing
6 none, all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
7 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
8 unanimously. 
9 If there’s no objections, I’m going to skip over
10 item number 5(c).  We’ll come back to that one when the
11 gentleman arrives.  He’s been detained a little bit. 
12 We’re going to move on to 6.  Point of privilege, if
13 there’s no objections.
14 Seeing and hearing no objections, we’re going to
15 move on to item number 6(a), second reading.  This is
16 going to be 2022-008, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance
17 #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as
18 adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County
19 Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 5.39 acres from R-20
20 (Single Family Residential District) to R-10
21 (Single-Family Residential District) on a parcel of
22 land, identified as 5.39 acres on Evergreen Road in the
23 North Pointe Precinct shown in Deed Book 15843 page
24 00246.  The parcel is further identified as TMS
25 #144-00-06-005.  This is in District 4.  This will be a
26 public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to this
27 matter, please step forward and state your name and
28 district and address the chair, please.  Anyone at all? 
29 Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will be
30 closed.  Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
31 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
33 Sanders to move forward.  Do we have a second?
34 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Mr.
36 Davis; that’s Mr. Jimmy Davis.  Any discussion?  Seeing
37 and hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of
38 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
39 unanimously. 
40 If it’s all right for everyone, we’re going to go
41 back to item number 5(c).  This will be item number
42 5(c), 2022-011, an Ordinance authorizing the execution
43 and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and
44 between Anderson County, South Carolina and Kelley
45 Engineering, LLC, formerly known to the County as
46 Project Yell, with respect to certain economic
47 development property in the County, whereby such
48 property will be subject to certain payments in lieu of
49 taxes including the provision of certain special source
50 credits; and other matters related thereto.  Again,



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
10

1 this was Project Yell.
2 Anyone wishing to speak to this -- this will be a
3 public hearing we’re going to go into.  Anyone wishing
4 to speak to this matter, please step forward, again,
5 and state your name and district for the record. 
6 Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public
7 hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion to move
8 this forward?
9 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
10 RAY GRAHAM:  So moved.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
12 Wilson; second Ray Graham, Councilman Graham.  Open the
13 floor up for discussion.
14 CINDY WILSON:  May I?
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
16 CINDY WILSON:  I’m slow
17 putting two and two together here.  I knew this was a
18 very good project, but I didn’t know it was one of our
19 fellow church members from childhood.  And Mr. Kelley,
20 the elder, has been a part of our HAZMAT team here for
21 years.  So this is a homegrown company, truly, and
22 we’re so blessed to have them.  A very high caliber
23 group of people.  Thank you.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?
25 Mr. Davis.
26 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair,
27 thank you.  I told Mr. Kelley earlier how excited I was
28 when I found out what this was.  And I was there when
29 we had the grand opening there on Highway 17 with Matt
30 and the rest of the family.  And I am thrilled today to
31 see the growth of this young company.  And I’m excited
32 about the future and what they hold.  They’re great
33 Anderson County residents and I’m excited to see this
34 happening tonight.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Graham.
36 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
37 Chairman.  Just want to commend you guys, as well. 
38 Barry, I’ve known you for quite sometime on the HAZMAT
39 team.  Matt, it’s great to see the development that we
40 have here in Anderson County.  But to see the homegrown
41 growth and to see you succeed and be successful in your
42 business, it’s really a tremendous pleasure to see this
43 coming before us tonight.  And definitely wish you guys
44 the best.  Thank y’all so much for investing in
45 Anderson County.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all. 
47 Anyone else?  I just want to say it is very exciting. 
48 It’s an honor and great to see y’all and to help this
49 go through.  I’ve known Mr. Kelley, the elder Mr.
50 Kelley, for years and years.  He was an officer, Chief,



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
11

1 over at Broadway Fire Department when I was at
2 Centerville.  We worked together on many issues. 
3 Fought many fires together.  Always respected Barry. 
4 Just had a meeting the other day on another thing.  And
5 more times than not, me and Mr. Kelley always agreed. 
6 He comes from a good family.  I know his sons good.  I
7 remember when he was a little bitty fellow.  Showing my
8 age now.  Back when he followed his daddy around the
9 fire department.  It’s just like we was there
10 yesterday, as Mr. Jimmy Davis said, having the ribbon
11 cutting at your place y’all done the work for.  To see
12 y’all expand and grow like this, this quick, for a
13 local owned company like this, it’s just great, great,
14 and we really do appreciate it.  If we can be of help
15 or service, don’t hesitate to let us know.  Okay. 
16 Thank y’all very, very much for what all y’all do for
17 Anderson County.  Anyone else?  All in favor of the
18 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
19 motion carries unanimously. 
20 Moving on now, we’ll go back to second readings of
21 Ordinances 6.  Now we’re on 6(b), 2022-013, an
22 Ordinance to amend Chapter 38 of the Code of
23 Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, so as to
24 provide for drainage and utility easements to convey
25 stormwater and provide for location of other utilities
26 in developments within Anderson County; and other
27 matters related thereto.
28 Mr. Harmon, will you just give a brief overview of
29 this, if you would?
30 LEON HARMON:  Yes, Mr.
31 Chairman.  What this Ordinance would do is provide for
32 easements to ensure that stormwater drainage in the
33 county can be handled.  Oftentimes we have large
34 subdivisions and they generate a good bit of
35 stormwater.  And we want to make sure that the
36 stormwater can be channeled through a project and that
37 easements are in place to handle the stormwater.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   And it’s not
39 only just that, which it is that a lot, but it’s to
40 keep it opened up and flowing from somebody from
41 damming it up and stopping it.  It makes it a little
42 bit easier to keep that -- somebody from closing it up
43 when it’s meant to start from day one.
44 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
45 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
46 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Jimmy Davis
48 makes the motion; Ms. Cindy Wilson seconds the motion. 
49 Are there any discussion?
50 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair?



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
12

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Davis,
2 Jimmy Davis.
3 JIMMY DAVIS:  In speaking
4 with a lot of the folks that I’ve talked to on this,
5 everybody sees this as a good thing.  I also like the
6 fact that it will be recorded on the plat so that
7 stormwater drainage cannot be developed upon or changed
8 down the road.  So this will be a good useful tool and
9 it’s something that we’ve been needing in Anderson
10 County for quite sometime.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
12 Anyone else?
13 CINDY WILSON:  May I?
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
15 CINDY WILSON:  Before I came
16 to the meeting tonight I had a very anguished phone
17 call from a constituent who is -- who owns a block of
18 farmland that the city has annexed all around her.  And
19 the retention ponds that they’ve put up all discharge
20 into the branch going through her farm.  She is really,
21 really upset because with the number of houses that
22 would be supposedly handled by those two retention
23 ponds over Crestview/Midway area, her stream is going
24 to be inundated.  And she’s very concerned.  
25 This measure we have before us now is going to be
26 helpful, but I don’t know how in the world we make
27 these big projects retain and have adequate retention
28 on their own property.  It’s going to be a continuing
29 nightmare with the higher density and more and more
30 impervious service.  
31 So we need to be thinking about making sure
32 standards are in place to help present flooding and
33 erosion to adjoining properties.  This will help, but
34 it won’t quite take care of her situation.  Anyway,
35 thank you.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
37 Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
38 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
39 unanimously. 
40 We’re going to move on now to item number 6(c), 
41 2022-014, an Ordinance to approve a ground lease
42 agreement between Anderson County, South Carolina and
43 Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC for a portion of Tax Map No.
44 122-00-01-001, the Civic Center parcel, for location
45 of a battery storage system project; and other matters
46 related matters.  
47 Do we have a motion to move this forward? 
48 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
50 Wilson; second Mr. John Wright.  Do we have any



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
13

1 discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of
2 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
3 the motion carries unanimously. 
4 We’re going to move on now to item number 7(a),
5 Ordinance’s first reading, Ordinance 2022-016, an
6 Ordinance authorizing the transfer of real property
7 located at 1299 Three and Twenty Road, Easley, South
8 Carolina (TMS No. 163-00-09-008) to the Three and
9 Twenty Fire Department trustees; and other matters
10 related thereto.
11 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
12 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
14 Jimmy Davis.
15 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
17 Wilson.  Open up the floor for discussion.
18 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir, Mr.
20 Jimmy Davis.
21 JIMMY DAVIS:  I want to say
22 that this is a good thing for the folks over at Three
23 and Twenty.  And our other fire departments will be
24 able to use this.  This will be turned into a training
25 facility.  This is an old convenience center that was
26 useful at one time, but as traffic increased on that
27 road, it became outdated and almost dangerous.  So I’m
28 -- and it’s right beside the fire department.  So I’m
29 glad to see this property being used for the betterment
30 and the training of our volunteer fire department in
31 Anderson County.  Thank you, sir.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Harmon, you
33 look like you’ve got something to say.  You fine?
34 LEON HARMON:  I’m good.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.
36 LEON HARMON:  I agree exactly
37 with what Mr. Davis said.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   This has been
39 in the works trying to get this done for a little bit
40 of time now.  Appreciate you getting this took care of. 
41 I know some things to chase down and all.  But this is,
42 as Mr. Jimmy Davis said, this is a good project.  
43 We have a great training facility in Anderson
44 County.  And this will help out where -- it won’t be as
45 good as this one down there at Dobbins Bridge Road, but
46 at least it’ll help out a lot on some things and won’t
47 have to travel that far.  So that’s a great thing.  
48 Anyone got anything else?  All in favor of the
49 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
50 motion carries unanimously. 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
14

1 We’re going to move on now to item number 7(b), 
2 2022-017, an Ordinance authorizing the transfer of
3 certain real properties located at 204 West Poplar
4 Street, Iva, South Carolina (TMS 133-04-01-003); 57 Oak
5 Street, Iva, South Carolina (TMS 133-02-06-003); and
6 717 Central Street, Iva, South Carolina (TMS
7 134-00-06-017) to the Town of Iva; and other matters
8 related thereto.
9 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
10 RAY GRAHAM:  So moved.
11 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Ray
13 Graham; second Ms. Wilson.  Mr. Graham.
14 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
15 Chairman.  This is some properties that was basically
16 taken back due to not being sold at a tax sale.  The
17 town of Iva has got I think about three different
18 developers down there that’s building some small houses
19 and basically putting some things up in some of the
20 vacant lots in that area.  The town has basically asked
21 the county to support them in giving these properties
22 to the town so they can basically get it to these
23 developers and get the properties developed and
24 basically put back on the tax books.  
25 Which it helps in several different ways.  It
26 removed the liability from the county and it also puts
27 it back on the tax books as a viable property.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Gets it cleaned
29 up.
30 RAY GRAHAM:  Kind of cleans
31 up the whole situation, really.  And we’ve done this
32 before.  Anyway, that’s where that comes from.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Appreciate you. 
34 Any more discussion?  All in favor of the motion show
35 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
36 carries unanimously. 
37 We’re going to move on to item number 7(c),
38 2022-018, an Ordinance to provide approval for Anderson
39 County to grant a perpetual and non-exclusive easement
40 unto Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC upon a portion of the
41 real property being Parcel A, 0.192 acres and Parcel B,
42 2.96 acres, as recorded in Plat Slide 1273, pages 5 and
43 6, Anderson County Register of Deeds for electric car
44 charging stations within the City of Belton; and other
45 matters related thereto.  This is in title only.
46 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
47 RAY GRAHAM:  So moved.
48 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
50 Graham; second Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up for



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
15

1 discussion?
2 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Graham.
4 RAY GRAHAM:  Again, Duke
5 Energy has basically contacted us, the city of Belton,
6 the town administrator and also the mayor.  This is
7 basically going to put some charging stations at the
8 library.  That’s the reason it’s a partnership through
9 the county and the city.  Basically it’s no charge on
10 our end.  It’s just basically putting a service out. 
11 And Duke Energy is willing to do that.  So hopefully
12 it’ll get some other foot traffic as well, as far as
13 people with electric cars.  The city of Belton, again,
14 the mayor and administrator has asked us for our
15 support on this.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
17 Graham.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
18 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   I’m sorry.  I
20 think we done had that.  I’m sorry.  We’ve done had
21 that and had a second.  So any more discussion?  All in
22 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
23 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
24 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
25 Chairman.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
27 Graham.
28 We’re going to move on now to item number 8(a),
29 change order for Hurricane Springs Park improvements. 
30 Who wants to make a motion?
31 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Jimmy Davis
33 wants to make a motion.
34 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Mr.
36 Brett Sanders.  Now discussion.
37 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir, Mr.
39 Davis, Jimmy Davis.
40 JIMMY DAVIS:  Even with these
41 changes orders, we’ve come in way, way under budget on
42 this project.  And I want to thank Robert Carroll and
43 his staff for really working hard on this.  We’ve come
44 in way under what we thought we were going to spend on
45 this project.  The people up there in the Wren
46 Community are really excited to soon have pickle ball
47 courts at Hurricane Springs Park.  Thank you, Mr.
48 Chair.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
50 Anyone else?  All in favor of Mr. Davis’s motion show



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
16

1 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
2 carries unanimously. 
3 We’re going to move on to item number 9(a), road
4 acceptance into the county inventory.  These are all,
5 my understanding, in District 6, Barrington Creek
6 Subdivision Phase I & II; Barrington Creek Road; Burr
7 Oak Lane; and Wyngate Court.  Do we have a motion?
8 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
10 Jimmy Davis to take these into inventory.  Do we have a
11 second?
12 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
14 Wilson.  Mr. Hogan is here.  Do these meet everything,
15 all the county’s criteria?
16 MR. HOGAN:  Yes, sir.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   All in favor --
18 any more discussion?  All in favor of the motion show
19 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
20 carries unanimously. 
21 We’re going to now -- do we have a motion to take 
22 -- go into executive session to take legal advice
23 regarding the road right-of-way condemnation matter?
24 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
26 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
27 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
29 Brett Sanders.  All in favor of the motion show of
30 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
31 unanimously. 
32 We’ll step right back here.
33 EXECUTIVE SESSION
34 CINDY WILSON:  ... legal
35 advice regarding a road right-of-way condemnation
36 matter subject to the attorney/client privilege, with
37 no votes taken.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson
39 makes a motion to come out of executive session, no
40 action taken.  Do I have a second?
41 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Brett
43 Sanders.  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
44 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
45 unanimously. 
46 BRETT SANDERS:  Mr. Chairman.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Sanders.
48 BRETT SANDERS:  I’d like to
49 make a motion to approve the condemnation of a right-
50 of-way to connect Interstate Boulevard to a proposed



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
17

1 road to provide multiple means of ingress and egress so
2 as to better accommodate the general public, public
3 safety and emergency vehicular traffic.  Upon the
4 development of the condemnation package, County Council
5 will approve the package before service upon impacted
6 property only.  Put that in the form of a motion.
7 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
9 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Discussion.  All in favor
10 of the motion show of hands.  All opposed ---
11 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, I
12 just want to say this is a friendly condemnation.  The
13 people actually want us to do the condemnation.  We’re
14 not going attacking some innocent citizen in doing
15 this.  They want us to do this.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you for
17 clarifying that.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
18 motion carries unanimously. 
19 We’re going to move on now to item number 11,
20 requests by council members.  Glenn Davis.
21 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
22 Chairman.  I’d like to appropriate two thousand dollars
23 from my rec account to The Zone.  I’ve worked with Mrs.
24 DeShields for about ten years.  And she really works
25 for the under-served young people in our community. 
26 Been doing an outstanding job for the past twenty
27 years.  And I was fortunate enough to work with her for
28 ten.  I’d like to put that in the form of a motion,
29 please.
30 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
32 Glenn; second Ms. Wilson.  Discussion?  All in favor of
33 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
34 Anything else?
35 GLENN DAVIS:  That’s all,
36 sir.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on now
38 to Brett Sanders.
39 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
40 Chairman.  If I could I’d like to just propose all
41 three of these together.  
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.
43 BRETT SANDERS:  From my special
44 rec account, I would like the sum of fifteen hundred
45 dollars to Split Creek Farm; five hundred to Rebuild
46 Upstate Veteran Support Team and five hundred to The
47 Zone Service.  Put that in the form of a motion.
48 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
49 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
18

1 Wilson; motion by Mr. Sanders.  Discussion.  All in
2 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
3 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.  
4 Jimmy Davis.
5 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
6 Chair.  If I may I’ll make these two in the form of one
7 motion.  From the District 6 special projects fund,
8 Rebuild Upstate Volunteer Veteran Support supporting
9 the veterans and homes five hundred dollars; and The
10 Zone five hundred dollars.  I make that in the form of
11 a motion.
12 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
13 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
15 David; second Mr. Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in
16 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
17 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
18 Moving on, Ray Graham.
19 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
20 Chairman.  I’m going to do all three of mine at the
21 same time if that’s possible.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.
23 RAY GRAHAM:  Five hundred
24 dollars to the Antique Gym in Iva; five hundred dollars
25 to the Upstate Volunteer Veteran Support Team; and five
26 hundred dollars to The Zone Services.  I bring this in
27 the form of a motion.
28 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ray
30 Graham; second Ms. Wilson.  Discussion?  All in favor
31 of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
32 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
33 Moving on now to John Wright.  Mr. Wright.
34 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
35 Chairman.  I’d like to put both of these in the form of
36 one motion.  To the Rebuild Upstate Volunteer Veterans
37 Support Team, I’d like to allocate five hundred dollars
38 from District 1's special rec account; and The Zone
39 Service, I’d like to also allocate five hundred dollars
40 from District 1's special rec account.  I put that in
41 the form of a motion.
42 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
44 Wright.  Second?
45 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
47 Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
48 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
49 carries unanimously. 
50 Ms. Wilson, do you have any?



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
19

1 Out of District 5's special appropriation account,
2 I’d like to appropriate five hundred dollars to Rebuild
3 Upstate Volunteer Veteran Support Team; and also five
4 hundred dollars to The Zone.
5 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
6 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
8 Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
9 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
10 carries unanimously. 
11 We’re going to move on now to the Administrator’s
12 report.
13 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this
14 time, Mr. Chairman.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Move on now to
16 item 13, citizens comments.  When Mr. Harmon calls your
17 name, please state your name and district for the
18 record and address the chair.  You have three minutes. 
19 Mr. Harmon.
20 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman,
21 the first speaker is Dolly Merritt.
22 DOLLY MERRITT:  Yes.  I’m in
23 District 6, Mr. Jimmy Davis’s district.  I just wanted
24 to express concern about the condition of many roads in
25 our area.  Particularly Mount Airy Church Road, Sitton
26 Hill Road, Brushy Creek Road.  Three Bridges Road was
27 paved two or three years ago.  We already have potholes
28 that are being patched.  Powdersville Road, Brushy
29 Creek Road.  All these roads are heavily trafficked by
30 students and parents taking children to and from
31 Powdersville schools, Concrete Elementary and Wren High
32 Schools.  
33 I know as the gentleman prayed a while ago that we
34 ask God for wisdom and compassion and understanding. 
35 And for years my husband and I have come to these
36 meetings and listened to the many reasons that we can’t
37 have funding.  It’s because the schools get most of our
38 money.  Well, I beg to differ in our area, because
39 Concrete Elementary is almost seventy years old.  It’s
40 almost two hundred students over capacity.  The roads
41 cannot handle the infrastructure of all the building
42 permits that are being given our by Anderson County.  
43 I don’t know if the planning guys are here or not,
44 gentlemen, but I believe there needs to be a moratorium
45 put on giving developers and builders permits to build
46 any more houses or multi-housing projects until these
47 roads are repaired.  It is embarrassing.  
48 I had family come here from Georgia on Sunday.  And
49 I brought them up 85 to the Highway 86 exit.  And I
50 brought them through Mount Airy Church Road to get on



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
20

1 Powdersville Road to go to Easley.  And when they
2 arrived, they said, somebody in your district is not
3 paying their taxes.  Your roads are terrible.  It’s
4 embarrassing.  It’s humiliating.  They’ve been that way
5 for decades.  
6 Mount Airy Church Road is a thoroughfare for Wren
7 High School students, Powdersville High School students
8 that drive.  We have Mount Airy Church, Community Bible
9 Church that uses this road, Grace Church, Mount Moriah
10 Baptist and Mount Pisgah Baptist.  I know people that
11 go to each of these churches that cut through Mount
12 Airy Church Road.  Two of these churches have over
13 fifteen hundred members.  I just want to express my
14 concern.  My five year old, who turned six years old
15 yesterday, my granddaughter, one day we were going down
16 Mount Airy Church Road and she said, Nana, this road is
17 like the lake when we ride the innertube.  It’s
18 ripples.  And she’s five years old.  How do you explain
19 to a five year old why your roads are crumbling, the
20 shoulders are crumbling ---
21 LEON HARMON:  Time, Mr.
22 Chairman.
23 DOLLY MERRITT:  Thank you for
24 the time.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
26 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is
27 Bobby Simmons.
28 BOBBY SIMMONS:  My name is
29 Bobby Simmons and I live in District 2.  But my
30 comments are not only for District 2, it’s for all the
31 districts.  So when I speak I’m not speaking just for
32 District 2.  I’m speaking for Anderson County.  
33 And what I want to speak on today is talking about
34 -- what I’m speaking on today is about lots that’s open
35 that I think that if you watch the news a whole lot
36 you’ll see that a lot of cities are converting land
37 into gardens.  So I think in Anderson County, we can do
38 the same thing.  And I ask you the question, do you
39 want to live next to a house that’s burned down or do
40 you want to live next to a garden?  
41 I mean it’s just apparent that you want to live
42 next to a garden, at least the lot would be cleaned off
43 and all.  And I’ve got a lot of confidence in Mr. Burns
44 that if a person have a lot that they don’t want to
45 sell it, but we can clean it off and the county can use
46 it for several years.  So something like an option to
47 help clean the lot up anyhow.  
48 There’s a lot of things that we can do with that
49 lot.  You’re asking, well, is it going to have somebody
50 to manage it?  Yes, you’ve got to have somebody to



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
21

1 manage it.  But the profit from selling the product
2 could pay for that person.  I have an idea that, you
3 know, you could sell the products at the Jockey Lot
4 Farmers Market or you could sell it at local
5 restaurants.  Or you could just give it away to people
6 who really need some help.  And I think a lot of people
7 need help, you know, whether they want to admit it or
8 not, they really need help.
9 So what I’m asking is that the county look into it. 
10 I’m not sure you’re going to do it or not, but just
11 look into it.  See if it’s feasible to take the land
12 that has these houses on it that’s torn up that we can
13 convert into gardens and we can get maybe the schools’
14 agricultural departments to help maintain these things. 
15 That’s what I feel like we could do today.  We just
16 need to get our minds together and just figure out how
17 we can get this done.
18 And the last thing I want to mention is about the
19 light.  They say that all -- the squeaky wheel gets the
20 most oil.  So want to say that we need a little light
21 out here.  Y’all have lights so y’all can see the
22 agenda, but me, I’m old, I’m seventy-five, and I need a
23 little bit more light.
24 I thank y’all for y’all’s attention.  Thank you.
25 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is
26 Jule Womack.
27 JULE WOMACK:  My name is Jule
28 Womack.  I want to address -- I live in District 5.  I
29 live at 124 Stanmoore Drive in Anderson.  And I have a
30 problem with the cul-de-sac.  I live in the cul-de-sac,
31 which allows you guys a fifty-foot easement.  But I’ve
32 been there for fourteen years.  And the person next
33 door said that I had my building on their property.  So
34 I have to have mine surveyed.  And when I did, I
35 learned that you guys have taken my property.  
36 So about a year ago, I addressed this to Matt --
37 and I don’t like calling him by his first name, but I
38 can’t remember his last name.
39 TOMMY DUNN:   It’s Matt
40 Hogan.
41 JULE WOMACK:  That’s his
42 name.  Yes, sir.  I’ve spoken with him because they
43 said that he was over everything.  I’ve spoken to
44 Justin Shirley, Mark McConnell, Mr. Bill Rutledge, Mr.
45 Glenn Davis.  And I believe the last person that I did
46 speak with, his name is Mr. Jay West.  I had his
47 telephone number and then the first number didn’t work,
48 so the second number did.  So I’m assuming it is his
49 number.  
50 But why I’m here now, in the cul-de-sac they built



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
22

1 property, a lot of houses, and they was planning to go
2 all the way around.  But they’ve changed their mind. 
3 The developer didn’t go through with the plan.  At that
4 time they was using my property.  
5 So I addressed Matt and everybody that I just named
6 that, you know, I’m willing to sell it.  At that time I
7 wasn’t -- at the first beginning I wasn’t willing to
8 sell it.  But they have done cracked up the road
9 because of all the big heavy machinery.  There’s a man
10 in the back that’s building a pond and a great big
11 house so they tore up right there where I live.  So
12 then I addressed him that I was interested in selling
13 it.  
14 So I’ve spoken to everyone.  The last person that I
15 spoke with was Mark McConnell and he said he would call
16 me back; that Matt was out that day.  And on Monday he
17 called me back and he said, no, we’re not going to buy
18 it, we’re not interested.  And if you want the road
19 repaired, you’ve got to put in an order to submit. 
20 That’s fine.
21 You’re not going to buy it.  So are y’all going to
22 go ahead and give me my property back?  He said, no,
23 and we’re not going to do that either.  So I’m
24 addressing this because it is my property.  I am paying
25 the taxes.  And you guys have taken it away.  And in
26 order for me to get it back, I have to get an attorney
27 and pursue it that way, because I tried Anderson County
28 and they said that they cannot sue the county because
29 it is Anderson County.
30 LEON HARMON:  Time, Mr.
31 Chairman.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Time’s up. 
33 When this meeting is over with, stick around.  We’re
34 about to finish up.  We’ll get you -- Mr. Harmon is our
35 county attorney.  They’re going to sit down and explain
36 to you -- I think I know what’s going on ---
37 JULE WOMACK:  Okay.  I
38 appreciate it.
39 TOMMY DUNN:   --- and explain
40 to you what this is all about.  
41 JULE WOMACK:  Okay.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   The property
43 line, what you call it.  I can assure you, the county
44 ain’t took nobody’s property.  If we have, we’re going
45 to give it back to you.  They’ll show it to you.  We
46 can work this thing out.  Okay?
47 JULE WOMACK:   Okay.  I
48 appreciate it very much.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
50 Yes, ma’am.  Mr. Harmon.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
23

1 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is
2 Mary Pat Herring.
3 MARY PAT HERRING:  I’m Mary Pat
4 Herring.  I live in Powdersville.  Jimmy Davis is our
5 council person.  We live in Timbrook.  And the roads in
6 Powdersville are deplorable based on the amount of
7 money that we spend for taxes.  We don’t just have
8 potholes.  We have massive holes that you have to
9 literally take your car either this way or this way to
10 dodge it.  And if you go this way, you have a depth of
11 up to this deep where the road has literally just
12 washed away, not just the soil that has washed away,
13 but the road itself.  And it is ruining the tires and
14 the alignment.  And people are wrecking.  And it’s
15 deplorable.  And it’s just, it’s just not right.  We
16 pay too much money to be ignored.  I think it’s the
17 wrong thing to do.
18 We have had people come out and they put a little
19 bit of patching in.  But it doesn’t last more than a
20 few days.  Maybe a few weeks.  It’s a band-aid, what
21 you’re doing.  
22 Somebody needs to come out and look at our roads. 
23 Mount Airy Church Road especially.  Sitton Hill. 
24 Sitton Hill is not a straight road.  It’s curvy.  We
25 have deer and all kinds of animals that run out in
26 front of us.  It is an accident waiting to happen.  And
27 I’m asking y’all, please consider this.  We’ve waited
28 far too long for somebody to pay attention to our
29 roads.  
30 And if you would stop the building, at least
31 temporarily.  And all these big trucks that come in,
32 that’s not helping.  They’re destroying our roads. 
33 Please consider us.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Harmon.
35 LEON HARMON:  No one else is
36 signed up, Mr. Chairman.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
38 Harmon.  
39 We’ll go now to remarks from council members.  Ms.
40 Wilson.
41 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
42 Chairman.  Sadly, planning in South Carolina and in our
43 county is in arrears instead of in advance.  And that’s
44 been the situation for decades now.  And we are trying
45 to catch up.  
46 We’re proposing a Planning and Public Works
47 Committee meeting.  Mr. Davis is okay with it.  Mr.
48 Sanders, would you look at your calendar for next
49 Wednesday, the 27th, at 10:00 a.m.?  And we’ll be
50 taking up RV issues, special exception issues and



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
24

1 several other matters; anything else that we can do.  I
2 have a very active committee.  We invite our public to
3 join us.  And we do know that our roads are in bad
4 shape.  I have a lot of bad roads in my district.  The
5 weather has not helped.  Along with the traffic.  Most
6 of the roads in Anderson County, including the one our
7 family farm is on, what you would call a paved pig
8 path.  It was never, ever engineered or built to
9 sustain the volumes, weights and speed of traffic.  It
10 was a little farm to market road.  
11 But the good news is because we’re such a good
12 county, everybody wants to come live amongst us.  I’m
13 not sure how we’re going to accommodate it, but we’re
14 trying.  Anyway, thank you all very much.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
16 Mr. Wright.
17 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
18 Chairman.  I just want to make mention that our Litter
19 Ad Hoc Committee is planning to have a meeting next
20 week.  I’m going to get with Mr. Smith, the Litter
21 Committee members and get that on the schedule.  We’ll
22 make sure we get it out to the public and try to get
23 some good participation on that.  That’s all I have. 
24 Thank you.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
26 Mr. Graham.
27 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
28 Chairman.  Two things.  One, as far as -- I’m not sure
29 what committee we need to look at with this, but the
30 deal with the campers and tents, everybody has got it
31 in every district.  I mean, it’s just getting out of
32 control.  I know, on one hand, Mr. Chairman, we want to
33 basically give people their rights as far as what they
34 can and can’t do on their properties, but it’s truly
35 getting to a point where what they’re doing on some of
36 these properties is causing problems with properties
37 that’s adjacent to them.
38 I would request that somehow we start reviewing
39 that and looking at our Ordinances.  Maybe, Leon, if we
40 could look at what some of the other counties is doing. 
41 I’ve spoken to the Association of Counties.  They’re
42 pulling some information, as well, as far as some
43 Ordinances that’s in place in some of the other areas. 
44 But somehow we’ve got to address this problem.  It’s an
45 ongoing issue.  It’s truly going to start causing some
46 financial hardship because not only is it going to
47 cause issues with adjoining neighbors, it’s also going
48 to cause issues with property values.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   What’s the --
50 somebody living in a camper is what you’re getting at?



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
25

1 RAY GRAHAM:  Well, anything
2 from campers, portable buildings.  I went to one over
3 off of Airline Road.  It ended up being your district,
4 but I mean ---
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Well, what I’m
6 getting at is we can look at this and well should.  But
7 there’s Ordinances and things on the books now, legal
8 standards, about people permanently living in campers
9 and people living in tents or what not.  There’s
10 Ordinances there now, standards about egress, about
11 sewage disposal, permanent power and those things,
12 about living conditions.  So there are things -- so we
13 do have -- I ain’t saying we don’t need to improve it
14 some, but there’s tools in the books now to help some
15 of this stuff out.
16 RAY GRAHAM:  There’s tools
17 out there, but right now they’re not able to be
18 enforced.  Whether it needs to be tweaked on it or
19 whatever.  I know ---
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Well, the
21 biggest thing is, by running into this before myself,
22 you’ve got to be able to prove somebody is living in
23 that camper full time.  That’s the thing.  And that
24 should be -- if they can prove that and get that, it
25 should be enforced.  I’ve had it happen in my district
26 several times and worked on that.  
27 But we definitely should be looking at that, what
28 you call it, but there’s definitely things on the books
29 now that can help alleviate some of these problems. 
30 Hopefully.
31 RAY GRAHAM:  Okay.  With
32 that being said, that might be the case.  There might
33 be some language in there that protects us, that allows
34 us to address that.  It’s not being addressed.  
35 And I’m wanting to make it vocal that we’ve got to
36 somehow address it as a county.  It’s not only in my
37 district.  Again, one of them was over on Airline Road,
38 which was between Mr. Davis and -- it’s kind of right
39 there between all three of us, Chairman Dunn, Mr. Davis
40 and myself.  Also there’s multiple ones down in the Iva
41 area, Starr area, Belton area, Williamston.  I mean, no
42 one is being hidden from this.  I mean it’s happening
43 all over the county.  
44 And again, we either need to strengthen our
45 ordinances or either, one, make sure Sergeant Hayes,
46 Investigator McCarley, they’ve got the proper
47 information so they can go out and truly address it. 
48 Naturally they can’t sit out there 24/7 and determine
49 whether or not they’re living there or not.  But I mean
50 when they’re going in and out and there’s all kind of



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
26

1 activity, drug activity and everything else, it’s
2 creating issues in these communities.  I don’t want
3 them beside my residence and neither does no one else.
4 The other thing, Mr. Hogan, I know you guys have
5 got beaten up tonight.  I know Belton -- we had the
6 issue on Chandler Drive and you guys stepped up and was
7 able to accommodate them and assist them in getting
8 that road repaired, and also at the end of Jackson.  I
9 definitely want to commend you and your guys for the
10 work on that.  I know you guys are doing a tremendous
11 amount of work.  We just -- we’re struggling, and I
12 understand that.  But I definitely appreciate your guys
13 stepping up to that.  Thank you so much for your help.
14 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
16 Mr. Glenn Davis.
17 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
18 Chairman.  If I can piggyback on Mr. Graham.  I’ve had
19 a couple of instances about these portable buildings
20 that people are living in.  I know people are facing a
21 hard time.  I mean people are actually struggling with
22 making ends meet and some of the living conditions may
23 not be acceptable to their neighbor, but they’re doing
24 the best they can.  I’ve had to address it.  Mr. Burns
25 and -- it’s kind of sad, but we do have Ordinances. 
26 But it’s something that we need to look at.  I agree
27 with you on that, as far as a county.
28 It just so happens I traveled on Mount Airy Road
29 going to pick up a student.  And you are right. 
30 There’s a lot of potholes.  There’s a lot of potholes. 
31 I had to dodge them.  But it’s all over the county.  I
32 don’t know what we’re going -- we’re going to do
33 something.  But again, you have my sympathy.  
34 Thank you.  That’s all, Mr. Chairman.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
36 Mr. Sanders.
37 BRETT SANDERS:  Nothing at this
38 time, sir.
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
40 Mr. Jimmy Davis.
41 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
42 Chair.  I want to thank the Herrings and Ms. Dolly
43 Merritt for coming out tonight.  I appreciate you.  I
44 know it’s a long trip down here from Powdersville.  But
45 I do appreciate you here.  
46 I would like to say, I mean, it is a county-wide
47 problem we have.  It’s -- we have close to sixteen
48 hundred miles of county roads.  And we all feel the
49 pain.  But we as a council, we’ve got -- we’ve kind of
50 talked about it before.  We’ve shot some ideas down



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
27

1 because they didn’t fund paving enough.  And we all are
2 in agreement that millage is not the way to pave roads
3 in Anderson County.  So I implore with you and say
4 let’s get back -- let’s get our heads back together and
5 see if we can find a way to put some money into paving
6 some of our county roads.  I think we’ve got a good
7 Roads and Bridges Department.  They’re doing everything
8 they can possibly do with the budget that we give them. 
9 Matt, if you don’t mind, let’s take a hard look at
10 Mount Airy Church Road.  And I would like to volunteer
11 my time and efforts.  We had a road-type meeting in
12 Powdersville in District 6 before.  I think it’s time
13 we do another one.  Maybe we can have Rita come out and
14 talk about the finances a little bit and see what we
15 can do about explaining a little bit more about how we
16 get funded and how things go about.  
17 We all know there’s problems.  I mean, I wake up
18 every morning starting about 5:00 a.m., hearing trucks
19 at a bridge on a county road and it rattles the whole
20 house.  I do think too, we ought to also look at some
21 of our county roads when we talk to constituents.  I
22 know it’s a pain in the tail to close some roads to
23 trucks, but that may be a way that we can salvage some
24 roads for at least a short period of time until we
25 figure this out.  Because as we can have grown, our
26 commercial traffic has grown.  
27 In District 6 we’ve got Budweiser and Coca-Cola and
28 several other industrial sites.  And I can tell you,
29 these guys love to use the cut-through roads, whether
30 they’re wide enough or not.  And we have a problem with
31 that.  So I think that’s -- I think there’s a myriad of
32 things that we can discuss and talk about.  And I ask
33 for your cooperation in that.
34 I also want to say, Mr. Graham, I sympathize with
35 you.  I’ve had some of the same issues in District 6. 
36 We actually had an instance in Timbrook where a lady
37 was renting out storage buildings as Airbnb’s.  And
38 when I found out about it, we took care of that.  So
39 we’ve had some of those instances.  We’ve recently had
40 an instance where a guy in a mobile home park was
41 letting people park campers on his property and running
42 the sewer out on the ground.  And we took care of that. 
43 But I mean, it’s a wide range of what we have going
44 on.  And I think Anderson County is better than that. 
45 And so maybe that’s something we can address and look
46 at our current Ordinances and PPW and see where we are
47 and if there are areas that we can improve.  I think
48 that would be a good area to study and improve upon.
49 But as the urban sprawl has gone on, we’ve had a
50 lot of instances in Powdersville with some small tent



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
28

1 cities and the sheriff does the best they can.  But
2 we’ve got a lot of that going on.  So I think it’s
3 something important to look at, as well.
4 I do want to remind you all and call to your
5 attention, on May the 7th, the Powdersville Business
6 Council is sponsoring, along with other sponsors,
7 especially Duke Power -- Duke Energy, I mean -- but the
8 Rhythm on the River is just around the corner.  It’s
9 going to be a wonderful day.  We had a great
10 groundbreaking at Dolly Cooper Park.  We finally got
11 some energy going there.  But Rhythm on the River,
12 there’s going to be a ton of food trucks, vendors,
13 things for kids, two bands.  And all that is on May the
14 7th.  And if you need any more information on that, let
15 me know.  But I would love to have all of you come out
16 and bring your families.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   We’ll look at
18 that.  But like I said there’s one thing -- like I
19 said, it’s happening in my district, too, and we’ve
20 addressed it and we helped it.  One thing, you’ve got
21 the International Building Codes that takes up a lot of
22 this stuff.
23 The other thing is, and this happened to me this
24 past week, if you go out here and have an Ordinance or
25 what not saying blah, blah, blah, well, that person has
26 got a right whether you like it or not, to go to Court. 
27 And if they push this thing to go to Court, it can take
28 a little bit of time.  I’ve got a habitual -- happened
29 multiple times, one fellow in my district just keeps
30 on, just junk, junk, junk, junk.  He’s been to Court
31 numerous times.  Have to go back, something wrong. 
32 Went back this past week -- not this week we’re in now,
33 but the past week -- guess what the judge fined him? 
34 Fifty dollars.  You think that’s bad?  She give him
35 till December to pay for it.  Now that’s what you’ve
36 got -- we can only do so much.  We don’t appoint
37 magistrates.  So we’ve got a problem there with a lot
38 of this stuff like this right here.  And believe me, I
39 was fit to be livid.  And that’s -- for her to do that
40 right there and fifty dollars and give him till
41 December to pay for it.  That discourages the officers
42 out here and everything.
43 The other thing I’d like to say is, ma’am, would
44 you like to introduce -- you’re a new person here and
45 there beside you, would you introduce him?  
46 MALE:  (Inaudible.)
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Heard a lot of
48 good stuff about him.  Appreciate it.  Thank you.
49 Saying that, everybody have a good, safe trip home. 
50 Appreciate seeing you in this council meeting.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - April 19, 2022
29

1
2
3 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:32 P.M.)































 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2022-013 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 38 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, SO AS TO PROVIDE FOR DRAINAGE 
AND UTILITY EASEMENTS TO CONVEY STORMWATER AND PROVIDE FOR 
LOCATION OF OTHER ULTILITIES IN DEVELOPMENTS WITHIN ANDERSON 
COUNTY; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council has the authority and duty pursuant to state 
law to provide for the general health, safety and welfare of Anderson County and to exercise its 
police powers therefor; 
 
 WHEREAS, a more systematic approach is desirable for providing for appropriate 
conveyance of stormwater and for the location of utility systems within developments located 
within the County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council desires to amend the Anderson County Code, 
Chapter 38, so as to appropriately provide for the stormwater conveyance and location of other 
utilities within developments located within the County. 
 
 NOW, THERFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. That the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, is hereby amended 
by adding sections to be numbered 38-360 and 38-361, which sections read as follows: 
 
 Sec. 38-360.-Drainage and Utility Easements. 
 

a. The width, length and location of all easements for drainage and utilities shall be 
established by the appropriate agency involved and shown on the final plat. 
 
b. A 5-foot drainage and utility easement is required on each side of all interior and 
rear lot lines. A 10 foot drainage and utility easement is required along all exterior 
lot lines.  If an adjoining subdivision has already dedicated a rear 5-foot easement; 
the 10-foot easement may be reduced to 5 feet. 
 
c. An easement acts as a reciprocal agreement between the subdivision property 
owners.  Each property owner is responsible for maintaining such easement on the 
property.  Drainage and utility easements are intended to be reciprocal easements 
among the subdivision property owners and not a dedication to the County.  
Property owners are responsible for keeping easements intact and clear of debris or 
structures.  Easements should not be altered in any manner. 
 
 
 



Sec. 38-361.-Conveyance System. 
 
a. Offsite stormwater that flows through a proposed subdivision must be routed 
through a designed conveyance system with a designated easement preferably 
through a common area. 
 
b. Internal conveyance systems must also be within a designated easement or a 
common area. 
 
c. The conveyance system easements are intended to be reciprocal easements and 
not a dedication to the County. 
 

2. That Section 38-332(4) of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
 Sec. 38-332-Final Plat. 
 

All final plats submitted for approval must contain, in addition to all requirements 
for preliminary plats, the following information: 
 
(4) In the absence of a specific engineering stormwater plan as a minimum, 5 foot 
drainage and utility easements shall be established along all side and interior rear 
property lines; 10 foot easements established along exterior boundary of the 
subdivision unless adjoining property owners have established easements. 
 

 3. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 4. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the rest 
and remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 5. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the third reading and 
enactment of by Anderson County Council. 
  



 
 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this 3rd day of May, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________   
Rusty Burns        Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts      
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
 
First Reading:       April 5, 2022 
 
Second Reading:  April 19, 2022 
 
Third Reading:     May 3, 2022 
 
Public Hearing:    May 3, 2022 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO.:  2022-014 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE A GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS, LLC 
OF A PORTION OF TAX MAP NO. 122-00-01-001, THE CIVIC CENTER PARCEL, FOR 
LOCATION OF A BATTERY STORAGE SYSTEM PROJECT; AND OTHER RELATED 
MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 
County Council (the “County Council”) is authorized under Title 4 of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, as amended, to lease, sell or otherwise dispose of real property owned by the County; 
 
 WHEREAS, the County proposes to lease to Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC (“Duke 
Energy”) a portion of the Civic Center property for purposes of development of a battery storage 
system project which would include backup power to the Civic Center in the event of a power 
outage; and 
 
 WHEREAS, enhanced backup power to the Civic Center during a power outage is a 
desirable feature for the Civic Center since it is used for various services and uses. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. The Anderson County Council hereby approves the ground lease of a portion of 
Tax Parcel 122-00-01-001, the Anderson County Civic Center Project, as shown on Exhibit A 
attached hereto, for purposes of development of an energy storage system project.  The Ground 
Lease Agreement is attached as Exhibit B.  The County Administrator is hereby authorized, 
empowered, and directed to execute, acknowledge, and deliver all documents in the name of and 
on behalf of the County to carry out the transaction authorized by this Ordinance. 
 
 2. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the rest 
and remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the third reading and 
enactment of by Anderson County Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this 3rd day of May, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________   
Rusty Burns        Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts    
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
 
First Reading:       April 5, 2022 
 
Second Reading:  April 19, 2022 
 
Third Reading:     May 3, 2022 
 
Public Hearing:    May 3, 2022 
 



 
1 

#5265596v5 

 
GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT 

 
THIS GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT (this “Lease”) is made and entered into as of the _____ 

day of ______, ______ (the “Effective Date”), by and between Anderson County, a body politic and 
corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the “Landlord”) and DUKE ENERGY, 
LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company (the “Tenant”). 

Landlord and Tenant covenant and agree as follows: 

1. Land and Intended Use.  In consideration of the rents, terms, covenants, and agreements 
set forth in this Lease to be paid, kept, and performed, Landlord leases to Tenant and Tenant leases from 
Landlord approximately 0.4  acres of land (being a portion of Tax Parcel No. 1220001001), located in the 
City of Anderson, Anderson County, South Carolina,  more particularly described and/or depicted on 
Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the “Land”), to be occupied and used upon 
the terms and conditions herein set forth.  Tenant’s intended use of the Land is for the development, 
construction, installation, operation and maintenance of an energy storage system and related improvements 
for the storage of electric power and related ancillary technologies, including but not limited to, solar 
photovoltaic power arrays, voltage regulation, and power quality regulation (the “Intended Use”), and 
including, without limitation, (i) electrical and communication lines, transformers, power inverters, 
equipment, cables, switches and electrical substation(s); (ii) laydown areas, control buildings, and 
maintenance facilities; and (iii) roads, fences and gates, and other structures and facilities required for 
ingress and egress for pedestrians, motor vehicles and equipment and for security (collectively the “Battery 
System”). 

 
 2. Term of Lease, Commencement Date, and Renewal Term.   

(a) Term of Lease and Commencement Date.  The term of this Lease (including any extensions 
or renewals, the “Term”) shall commence on the Commencement Date and shall end at 11:59 P.M. local 
time on the date that is twenty (20) years after the Commencement Date (the “Expiration Date”), unless 
extended or sooner terminated as herein provided.  If the Expiration Date is other than the last day of a 
calendar month, the Term shall be extended automatically until 11:59 P.M. local time on the last day of the 
calendar month in which the Term otherwise would expire.  The “Commencement Date” shall be the 
Commercial Operation Date.  The “Commercial Operation Date” shall be the date that all of the following 
have occurred: (i) the Energy Storage System has been installed, constructed, tested, commissioned, and is 
fully capable of being operated for its Intended Use; (ii) the Tenant has received all permits and approvals 
from governmental authorities having jurisdiction and the applicable electrical transmission provider for 
the Energy Storage System; and (iii) the Energy Storage System begins delivering electricity to the 
electrical grid.  Once the Commencement Date is ascertained, the parties agree to execute a memorandum 
or other writing confirming the Commencement Date. 

(b) Renewal Terms.  Tenant shall have the right to extend the initial Term granted herein for 
one (1) additional terms of five (5) years  (the “Renewal Term” ) by providing Landlord with written notice 
of Tenant’s desire to extend the Term for the applicable Renewal Term prior to the Expiration Date.    

 3. Due Diligence Period; Construction Period; and Landlord’s Rights Before 
Construction Commencement Date.   

 (a) Due Diligence Period.  Commencing on the Effective Date and continuing for a period of 
one (1) year after the Effective Date (the “Initial Due Diligence Period), Tenant shall have the right to enter 
the Land to perform its due diligence, inspection, investigation and pre-construction activities to determine 



 
2 

#5265596v5 

if the Land is suitable for leasing by Tenant, the Intended Use, and obtaining permits and approvals for the 
Intended Use. Tenant may extend the Initial Due Diligence Period for one (1) additional year commencing 
after the expiration date of the Initial Due Diligence Period (the “Extended Due Diligence Period”), by 
delivering written notice to Landlord prior to the expiration date of the Initial Due Diligence Period. (The 
Initial Due Diligence Period and Extended Due Diligence Period are collectively referred to herein as the 
“Due Diligence Period”). 

(b) Construction Period. The “Construction Period” shall commence upon the Construction 
Commencement Date (as hereinafter defined) and expire upon the Commercial Operation Date (which is 
the same date as the Commencement Date of the Term of this Lease). The “Construction Commencement 
Date” shall be the earlier of (i) the date Tenant issues written notice to Landlord advising Landlord of 
Tenant’s intent to begin construction activities at the Land, or (ii) the date Tenant commences the 
construction or installation of the Energy Storage System at the Land; provided however, the Construction 
Commencement Date shall not be deemed to have occurred by virtue of any testing conducted by Tenant 
on the Land, minimal site clearing to support such testing, or by virtue of Tenant installing access routes or 
roads on the Land.  Once the Construction Commencement Date is ascertained, the parties agree to execute 
a memorandum or other writing confirming the Construction Commencement Date. 

(c) Landlord’s Rights Prior to Construction Commencement Date. During the period between 
the Effective Date and the Construction Commencement Date, Landlord shall continue to have full use and 
control of the Land, subject to Tenant’s access and inspection rights set forth in Section 3(a) and Section 4 
of this Lease.  On and after the Construction Commencement Date, Landlord (and any other party claiming, 
by, through or under Landlord) shall not have full use and control rights of the Land. 

 4. Lease Contingencies and Tenant’s Due Diligence.  

 (a) Lease Contingencies.  Tenant’s obligation to perform hereunder shall be subject to the 
satisfaction of the following contingencies (collectively the “Contingencies”):  (i) Tenant obtaining all 
necessary permits and approvals from federal, state and local governmental authorities required by Tenant 
for its Intended Use and to construct and operate its Battery System at the Land; (ii) Tenant’s review and 
approval of title and survey matters with respect to the Land, the environmental, geological, geotechnical, 
and physical condition of the Land; (iii) Tenant obtaining all necessary easements for its Intended Use; (iv) 
Tenant deciding to lease the Land in lieu of other sites being considered by Tenant prior to the expiration 
date of the Due Diligence Period; and (v) Tenant’s review and approval of any other matters that Tenant 
deems relevant to determining whether Tenant’s leasing of the Land is economically and otherwise feasible. 
Landlord, at no cost to Landlord, agrees to sign any applications or other documents (that require signature 
by the fee owner of the Land), and to take all such other actions, as are reasonably required to allow Tenant 
to, at Tenant’s expense, obtain any re-zonings, variances, permits or other approvals required by Tenant for 
the Intended Use.  If Tenant is unable to satisfy the Contingencies to Tenant’s satisfaction prior to the 
expiration date of the Due Diligence Period, or if Tenant otherwise determines that Tenant’s leasing of the 
Land is not feasible or desirable for any reason whatsoever, Tenant may terminate this Lease by giving 
written notice to Landlord prior to the expiration date of the Due Diligence Period.  In addition, the Tenant’s 
right to terminate this Lease pursuant to this Section 4(a) shall expire on the Construction Commencement 
Date and is further subject to the conditions specified in Section 9 of this Lease.   

(b) Due Diligence, Inspections, Title and Survey. After the Effective Date, Tenant and its 
employees, agents, contractors, and authorized representations shall be entitled to enter the Land and 
conduct, at Tenant’s expense, inspections, investigations, studies, surveys, borings, sampling, and testing 
of the Land as Tenant deems necessary or desirable to determine if the Land is suitable for Tenant’s 
Intended Use (the “Due Diligence Work”). Within sixty (60) days after the Commencement Date, Tenant 
shall obtain a survey of the Land (the “Survey”).  The Survey’s legal description shall be deemed to be the 



 
3 

#5265596v5 

legal description of the Land for all purposes under this Lease.  After the Commencement Date, Tenant 
may, at Tenant’s expense, conduct the necessary survey(s) and submit the required filings to the local 
governmental authority having jurisdiction to subdivide the parcel(s) of Land comprising the Land so that 
the Land are contained within one or more tax parcels separate from other adjacent property owned by the 
Landlord.  

5. Rent.   
 
(a)  Due Diligence Period Rent. Tenant shall pay Landlord the sum of ___ and 00/100 Dollars 

($__.00) for each year of the Due Diligence Period.  Such payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of 
the Effective Date and each anniversary thereof while the Due Diligence Period is in effect. 

 
(b)  Construction Period Rent. Tenant shall pay Landlord the sum of ___ Dollars ($__.00) for 

each year of the Construction Period.  Such payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of the 
Construction Commencement Date and each anniversary thereof while the Construction Period is in effect. 

(c) Operating Period Rent. Tenant shall pay Landlord annual rent during the term in the sum 
of __($__.00) per acre of Land (prorated for any fractional acres), as evidenced and determined by the 
survey.  Such payment shall be made with (30) days of the Commercial Operation Date and each 
anniversary thereof while the Operating Period is in effect.   

 
(d)  Rent Increase. Commencing on the fifth (5th) annual anniversary date of the Commercial 

Operation Date, and on each fifth (5th) annual anniversary thereafter, the annual rent payable hereunder 
shall increase  over the annual rent payable for the prior year by ____ percent (%). 
  
 6. Utilities, Maintenance and Repairs.  Tenant shall pay for all utilities used at the Land by 
Tenant.  Tenant, at Tenant’s cost, shall be responsible for the repair and maintenance of the Energy Storage 
System and Tenant’s improvements on the Land. 
 
 7. Alterations.   
 
 (a) Tenant may, at its expense, make any alterations, additions, improvements and changes to 
the Land as it may deem necessary or desirable in the operation of its business or Energy Storage System, 
without the consent of Landlord, including without limitation any fencing, security devices and or signage 
desired by Tenant.  Any alteration, addition, improvement or change conducted by Tenant shall be done in 
compliance with applicable laws and requirements of governmental agencies having jurisdiction.  Landlord, 
at no cost to Landlord, agrees to sign any permit applications and to take all such other actions as are 
reasonably required to allow Tenant to accomplish any such alterations, additions, improvements and 
changes to the Land.  The Energy Storage System and any and all improvements constructed on the Land 
by or for Tenant, and all machinery, fixtures, trade fixtures, equipment, and other personal property installed 
or placed in the Land by or for Tenant, shall, regardless of the manner of attachment to the Land or the 
improvements thereon, be and at all times remain the property of Tenant, and shall be removable by it at 
any time and from time to time during the Term and at the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.  
In the event that Tenant removes any trees, crops or other vegetation from the Land during the Term, Tenant 
may sell and/or dispose of the same, and any revenues derived by Tenant from the sale of the same shall 
belong to Tenant. 
 
 (b) Within thirty (30) days after the Tenant notifies Landlord that the Construction 
Commencement Date has occurred, Landlord shall, at Landlord’s sole cost and expense, remove and 
dispose of all of the following from the Land: NONE 



 
4 

#5265596v5 

 8. Use and Occupancy.  Tenant shall be entitled to use the Land for the Intended Use. Tenant 
agrees that no unlawful use of the Land will be made. Landlord shall deliver sole and exclusive possession 
of the Land to the Tenant on the Construction Commencement Date.   
 
 9. Lease Termination and Surrender of Land.   
 
 (a) Termination Rights.  Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease as of the date that 
is thirty-six (36) months after the Commencement Date (the “Termination Date”) by providing Landlord 
with written notice of such termination on or before the date that is thirty (30) days prior to the Termination 
Date.  Upon a termination of this Lease by Tenant permitted hereunder, this Lease shall terminate and 
become null and void, and Tenant shall have no further obligations hereunder. 
 
 (b) Surrender of Land.  Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, Tenant shall 
(i) return the Land to Landlord in substantially the same condition the same were in as of the Construction 
Commencement Date, to the extent practicable and reasonable wear and tear excepted; and if applicable, 
(ii) decommission and remove Tenant’s Energy Storage System and all improvements and equipment 
constructed or installed by Tenant on the Land.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall Tenant 
have any obligation to replace any crops or other vegetation damaged or removed by Tenant during the 
Term. 
 
 10. Insurance.  Tenant may, after the Energy Storage System and its improvements are 
completed, keep such improvements insured against loss or damage by fire, windstorm, earthquake and 
similar hazards.  Each party hereto shall keep in force, at its sole cost and expense, comprehensive 
commercial general liability insurance, with a combined single limit of not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000) per occurrence and not less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate, insuring such 
party, and the other party hereto as additional insured, against liability arising out of the use, occupancy or 
ownership of the Land.  Any provisions herein to the contrary notwithstanding, Landlord and Tenant 
mutually agree that, in respect to any loss which is covered by insurance then being carried by them 
respectively (or which would have been covered had such party maintained the insurance required 
hereunder), the one carrying such insurance and suffering said loss hereby releases the other of and from 
any and all claims with respect to such loss, and waives any rights of subrogation which might accrue to 
the carrier of such insurance.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant may self-insure (either by use of 
deductibles or self-insured retention) the coverage required of Tenant hereunder and Tenant may satisfy its 
insurance obligations hereunder through a “blanket” policy or policies covering other properties or 
liabilities of Tenant. 

 11. Taxes.  Tenant shall be solely responsible for any ad valorem property taxes that are 
assessed against either the Land or Tenant’s personal property for periods falling within the Term.  Landlord 
and Tenant shall apportion taxes appropriately between the parties for any partial tax years falling within 
the Term.  Tenant shall also be responsible for any deferred property taxes (“Deferred Taxes”) due on the 
Land as a result of Tenant’s use of the Land for the Intended Use in accordance with applicable South 
Carolina laws.  However, in the event that Tenant’s use of the Land for the Intended Use triggers the 
obligation to pay any Deferred Taxes, or any other taxes, assessments, penalties, fees or interest, on any 
other property owned by Landlord (other than the Land), Landlord shall be solely responsible for paying 
the same.  In the event that the Land is a part of a larger tax parcel owned by Landlord, and Deferred Taxes 
become payable on the entire tax parcel as a result of Tenant’s use of the Land for the Intended Use, the 
Deferred Taxes shall be equitably apportioned as to Landlord and Tenant in a pro-rata manner such that 
Tenant is responsible only for such costs as they relate to the Land and Landlord is responsible for the 
remainder.  During the Term, Tenant, at its cost, shall have the right, at any time, to seek a reduction in the 
assessed valuation of the Land or to contest any taxes that are assessed against the Land (or any portion 



 
5 

#5265596v5 

thereof) or are to be paid by Tenant.  If Tenant seeks a reduction or contests any taxes, the failure on 
Tenant’s part to pay the taxes shall not constitute a default as long as Tenant complies with the provisions 
of this Section 11. 

 12. Fire or Other Casualty.  In the event that the Land, System, the improvements thereon, 
or any portions thereof, are damaged by fire or other casualty during the Term, and if in Tenant’s sole 
reasonable judgment, the damage is of such nature or extent that it is uneconomical to repair and restore 
the Land, the Battery System, or other improvements thereon, as the case may be, Tenant may terminate 
this Lease by written notice to Landlord.  The proceeds of any casualty insurance policy maintained by 
Tenant shall be payable to Tenant.   

 13. Condemnation.   

(a) If the whole of the Land shall be taken under the exercise of the power of eminent domain 
or by agreement with any condemnor in lieu of such taking, or such portion thereof that, in Tenant’s 
judgment, the remainder of the Land is not suitable for Tenant’s purposes (a “Total Taking”), then this 
Lease shall terminate as of the earlier of the date when title thereto vests in the condemnor or the date when 
possession thereof shall be delivered to the condemnor. 

(b) If a portion or portions of the Land shall be taken under the exercise of the power of eminent 
domain or by agreement with any condemnor in lieu of such taking, and such taking does not constitute a 
Total Taking (a “Partial Taking”), then this Lease, only as to the portion or portions so taken, shall terminate 
as of the date possession thereof shall be delivered to the condemnor, but otherwise this Lease shall remain 
in full force and effect.  If there is any Partial Taking, the Landlord and the Tenant shall both be entitled to 
participate in the condemnation proceeding to establish the condemnation award to the taking of each 
parties’ interest in the Land.  

(c) If Landlord and Tenant are unable to obtain separate awards with respect to their respective 
interests in the Land, then, the single award shall be fairly and equitably apportioned between Landlord and 
Tenant.  The portion of the award to be received by Landlord shall be based upon the taking of or injury to 
the fee simple estate in the Land, but not the improvements thereon.  The portion of the award to be received 
by Tenant shall be based upon the taking and reduction of Tenant’s leasehold estate created by this Lease, 
the taking of any improvements constructed or placed by Tenant on the Land, loss or interruption of 
Tenant’s business and the cost of any restoration or repair necessitated by such taking or condemnation.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, in the event Tenant has exercised its right to terminate this Lease 
under this Section 13, then Tenant shall first receive all condemnation proceeds until Tenant has received 
an amount equal to the appraised value of the improvements made to the Land by Tenant prior to the taking.  
Tenant shall have the right to participate, at its own expense, in any such condemnation proceedings and to 
negotiate on behalf of itself and Landlord in such proceedings; provided, however, Tenant shall not enter 
into any binding agreement or settlement without the prior consent of Landlord, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed by Landlord.  Landlord agrees to cooperate with Tenant and 
to execute such documentation as may be reasonably necessary to allow Tenant to participate in such 
condemnation proceedings.   

 14. Default.  If either party fails to comply with any term, covenant or condition of this Lease 
for a period of thirty (30) days after the defaulting party’s receipt of written notice from the other party of 
such failure (provided, however, if such failure cannot reasonably be cured within such thirty (30) day 
period, the defaulting party shall not be in default hereunder if it commences to cure within such thirty (30) 
day period and prosecutes the cure to completion in good faith and with due diligence), then the defaulting 
party shall be deemed in default hereunder and the other party may, at its option, may pursue any and all 



 
6 

#5265596v5 

remedies available to such party at law or in equity.  If there is a default by a party hereunder, the non-
defaulting party will take commercially reasonable measures to mitigate its damages. 
 
 15. Binding Effect; Assignment and Subletting.  This Lease shall be binding upon and inure 
to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns.  
Tenant may assign this Lease, in whole or in part, or sublet the Land, or any part thereof, without Landlord’s 
prior consent, provided that any such assignee shall agree in writing to be bound by all of the terms and 
conditions of this Lease.  Landlord shall promptly notify Tenant in writing of the identity and address of 
any purchaser of Landlord’s fee interest in the Land and Landlord shall cause such purchaser to notify 
Tenant in writing of the address. 
 
 16. Mutual Indemnification.  Except to the extent caused by Landlord, Tenant agrees to 
indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from any and all damages or claims which Landlord may be 
compelled to pay on account of injuries to person or damages to property on the Land where the aforesaid 
injuries or damages are caused by Tenant (or Tenant’s employees, agents, or contractors) or Tenant’s breach 
of this Lease.   

 
 17. Quiet Enjoyment.  Landlord covenants and warrants that as long as Tenant is not in default 
under the terms and conditions of this Lease (beyond any applicable notice and cure periods), it will defend 
the right of possession to the Land in Tenant against all parties whomsoever for the entire Term hereof, and 
that Tenant shall have peaceable and quiet possession of the Land during the Term without hindrance or 
molestation.   

 
 18. Waiver.  The waiver by any party of any breach of any covenant or agreement herein 
contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other covenant 
or agreement herein contained.  

 
 19. Notices.  All notices, elections, demands, requests, payments and other communications 
hereunder shall be in writing, signed by the party making the same and shall be sent by certified or registered 
United States mail, postage prepaid, or by national overnight courier service which provides tracking and 
acknowledgement of receipts, addressed to: 

 
To Landlord:    Anderson County 
   Attn: _______________________ 

PO Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29622 

 
To Tenant:  Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 

Lease Administration 
550 S. Tryon Street, DEC 22A 
Charlotte, NC 28202 

 
or at such other address as may hereafter be designated in writing by either party hereto.  The time and date 
on which mail is postmarked shall be the time and date on which such communication is deemed to have 
been given.  
 

20. Memorandum of Lease.  Landlord and Tenant agree that this entire Lease shall not be 
recorded; provided however, promptly after the full execution of this Lease, Landlord and Tenant shall 
execute and record (at Tenant’s expense) a memorandum of this Lease in the Office of the Register of 
Deeds in the County in which the Land is located and which memorandum shall be in form sufficient to 



 
7 

#5265596v5 

publish notice and protect the validity of this Lease and Tenant’s rights hereunder. The lease memorandum 
shall specify the Commencement Date, the Expiration Date, the Renewal Terms granted herein, and such 
other provisions of this Lease as the parties mutually agree to incorporate therein. 
 

21. Governing Law.  This Lease shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws 
of the State of South Carolina. 
 

22. Invalidity of Particular Provisions.  If any term or provision of this Lease shall to any 
extent be ruled invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Lease 
shall not be affected thereby and each other term and provision of this Lease shall be valid and enforced to 
the fullest extent permitted by law.  
 

23. Subordination/Non-Disturbance Agreement.   
 

(a) Tenant’s obligation to subordinate its interests or attorn to any mortgagees or beneficiaries 
of mortgages or deeds of trust, or any other holders of liens on the Land or any portion thereof (each 
hereinafter a “Mortgagee”) that may heretofore or hereafter be placed against the Land by Landlord is 
conditioned upon the Mortgagee’s written agreement not to disturb Tenant’s possession, quiet enjoyment 
of the Land, and rights under this Lease so long as Tenant is not in default under the terms of this Lease 
(beyond any applicable notice and cure periods). Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 
provide to Tenant, on or before the expiration date of the Due Diligence Period and Construction 
Commencement Date, a subordination, non-disturbance, and attornment agreement from any and all current 
Mortgagees that is reasonably acceptable to Tenant.  With respect to any future Mortgagee of a mortgage 
or deed of trust, Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain from such future Mortgagee 
a subordination, non-disturbance, and attornment agreement that is reasonably acceptable to Tenant. 

   
(b) In the event any proceedings are brought for foreclosure of any mortgage or deed of trust 

on the Land, Tenant will attorn to the purchaser at a foreclosure sale on acquiring Landlord’s interest in the 
Land and the Lease, and any assignee thereof, and recognize such purchaser or assignee as Landlord under 
this Lease provided such purchaser or assignee agrees in writing not to disturb Tenant’s possession or rights 
under this Lease or in the Land, and to acknowledge all of Tenant’s rights hereunder, so long as Tenant is 
not in default under the terms of this Lease (beyond any applicable notice and cure periods).  Tenant agrees 
to give any such Mortgagee of whom Tenant has been informed in writing, written notice of any default or 
failure to perform by Landlord under this Lease.  Such Mortgagee shall have the same amount of time 
afforded to Landlord hereunder to cure any Landlord default; and Tenant shall accept such cure if timely 
and effectively made by such Mortgagee. 

 24. Warranties and Representations.   

(a) Tenant hereby agrees with, and warrants and represents to Landlord as follows: (i) Tenant 
is a duly formed and validly existing entity, incorporated or organized under the laws of the State in which 
it was incorporated or organized; (ii) Tenant has the full legal right, power and authority to execute this 
Lease and all documents now or hereafter to be executed by it pursuant to this Lease; (iii) this Lease has 
been duly authorized by all requisite entity action on the part of the Tenant, and is the valid and legally 
binding obligation of Tenant, enforceable in accordance with its terms; (iv) this Lease will not contravene 
any provision of Tenant’s organizational documents, any judgment, order, decree, writ or injunction issued 
against Tenant or any provision of any laws applicable to Tenant; and (v) the consummation of the 
transaction contemplated hereby will not result in a breach or constitute a default or event of default by 
Tenant under any agreement to which Tenant or any of its assets are subject or bound and will not result in 
a violation of any laws applicable to Tenant. 



 
8 

#5265596v5 

(b) Landlord hereby agrees with, and warrants and represents to Tenant as follows: (i) 
Landlord is the owner of the Land with full right and authority to execute this Lease and to lease the Land 
to Tenant in accordance with the terms hereof;  (ii) to the best of Landlord’s knowledge, the Land are free 
from environmental contamination of any sort, and the Land complies with any and all applicable laws, 
rules, and ordinances; (iii) Landlord has not received any notice of condemnation, zoning change or legal 
noncompliance relating to the Land; (iv) Landlord will not institute or consent to any rezoning of the Land 
during the Term, unless specifically requested by Tenant; (v) Landlord shall not further encumber the title 
to the Land after the Effective Date and during the Term; (vi) Landlord acknowledges that access to sunlight 
is essential to the value of the rights granted to Tenant under this Lease, and accordingly, Landlord shall 
not cause or permit any property owned or controlled by Landlord in the vicinity of the Land, or any 
activities, uses or improvements thereon, to impair Tenant’s use of the Land or the Energy Storage System 
thereon (for example, and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Landlord shall not cause or 
permit any cell towers, water towers, billboards, silos or any other structures to be placed or constructed 
thereon or permit the growth of any foliage that may obstruct the sunlight that otherwise would reach the 
Land, or that may cast shade or shadows upon the Land or any portion thereof); (vii) the Land is free from 
any recorded or unrecorded use or occupancy restrictions or declarations of restrictive covenants; (viii) 
Landlord has not and, to the best of Landlord’s knowledge, Landlord’s tenants or predecessors in title have 
not used, manufactured, stored or released petroleum products or hazardous substances on, in or under the 
Land; (ix) there are no service or maintenance contracts affecting the Land for which Tenant may be 
obligated or liable for; (x) there are no delinquent or outstanding assessments, liens, taxes, or other 
impositions levied or assessed against the Land; (xi) there is no pending or threatened lawsuit, claim, or 
legal proceeding against Landlord or the Land that could affect the Tenant’s rights under this Lease or the 
Landlord’s ability to perform Landlord’s obligations hereunder; (xii) except for this Lease, there are no 
leases, options to purchase, license agreements or other third party rights to use or possess the Land (or any 
portion thereof), whether written or oral, recorded or unrecorded; (xiii) Landlord is not in the hands of a 
receiver nor is an application for such a receiver pending; (xiv) Landlord has made no assignment for the 
benefit of creditors, nor filed, or had filed against it, any petition in bankruptcy; and (xv) within five (5) 
days after the Effective Date, Landlord shall provide copies of the following documents with respect to the 
Land in Landlord’s possession or reasonably available to Landlord:  (a) any notices of any statute or code 
violation; (b) to the extent assignable, copies of all documents, contracts, reports, communications, or other 
materials reasonably requested by Tenant, that relate to the design, development, construction, condition, 
ownership or operation of the Land; (c) surveys of the Land, engineering studies, soil suitability and 
compaction studies, environmental permits, local zoning permits, variances, waivers, or similar documents; 
(d) environmental reports and audits (including, but not limited to, all “Phase I” environmental site 
assessments and other environmental assessment and remediation reports, if any, pertaining to the Land); 
(e) liens, mortgages, deeds of trust, leases, easements, restrictions, covenants, and agreements applicable to 
the Land; and (f) title commitments, title policies, title opinions, and other title or survey information 
relating to the Land.  Landlord shall have a continuing obligation to provide to Tenant the documents, if 
any, referenced in subparts (a) through (f) above, which may come into Landlord’s possession, or become 
available to Landlord, during the Due Diligence Period.  

(c) Tenant shall retain title to and be the legal and beneficial owner of the Energy Storage 
System at all times.  Landlord shall provide timely notice of Tenant’s title and sole ownership of the Energy 
Storage System to all persons that have, or may come to have, an interest in or lien upon the real property 
comprising the Land.  Tenant shall be the exclusive owner of the electricity stored by the Energy Storage 
System and the Environmental Attributes (as hereinafter defined) and Environmental Incentives (as 
hereinafter defined) thereof.  “Environmental Attributes” means the characteristics of electric power 
generation at the Energy Storage System that have intrinsic value, separate and apart from the generated 
energy, arising from the perceived environmental benefits of the Energy Storage System or energy 
generated at the Energy Storage System, including but not limited to all environmental and other attributes 



 
9 

#5265596v5 

that differentiate the Energy Storage System or energy generated at the Energy Storage System from energy 
generated by fossil-fuel based generation units, fuels or resources, characteristics of the Energy Storage 
System that may result in the avoidance of environmental impacts on air, soil or water, such as the absence 
of emission of any oxides of nitrogen, sulfur or carbon or of mercury, or other gas or chemical, soot, 
particulate matter or other substances attributable to the Energy Storage System or the compliance of the 
Energy Storage System or energy generated at the Energy Storage System with the law, rules and standards 
of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (the “UNFCCC”) or the Kyoto Protocol 
to the UNFCCC or any successor laws, rules or standards or crediting “early action” with a view thereto, 
or laws or regulations involving or administered by the Environmental Protection Agency or successor 
administration or any state or federal entity having jurisdiction over a program involving transferability of 
rights arising from Environmental Attributes.  Without limiting the forgoing, “Environmental Attributes” 
includes green tags, renewable energy credits, tradable renewable certificates, portfolio energy credits, the 
right to apply for (and entitlement to receive) incentives under any demand-side management or energy 
efficiency programs offered by a utility company, a third-party provider, or other incentive programs 
offered by the state and the right to claim federal income tax credits, if applicable.  “Environmental 
Incentives” means all rights, credits (including tax credits), rebates, benefits, reductions, offsets, and 
allowances and entitlements of any kind, howsoever entitled or named (including carbon credits and 
allowances), whether arising under federal, state or local law, international treaty, trade association 
membership or the like, arising from the Environmental Attributes of the Energy Storage System or the 
energy generated at the Energy Storage System or otherwise from the development or installation of the 
Energy Storage System or the production, sale, purchase, consumption or use of the energy generated at 
the Energy Storage System. 

 25. Brokerage Commission.  Neither Landlord nor Tenant knows of any real estate brokers 
or agents who are or may be entitled to any commission or finder’s fee in connection with this Lease.  Each 
party hereto agrees to indemnify and hold the other party harmless from and against any and all claims, 
demands, losses, liabilities, lawsuits, judgments, costs and expenses (including without limitation, fees for 
legal counsel and costs) with respect to any leasing commission or equivalent compensation alleged to be 
owing on account of such party’s discussions, negotiations and/or dealings with any real estate broker or 
agent. 

 26. Easements.  Landlord agrees to reasonably cooperate with Tenant in granting easements 
and rights of way on adjacent property owned by Landlord necessary to serve the Land for the Tenant’s 
Intended Use.  Landlord covenants and agrees that Landlord shall, upon the request of Tenant, join in the 
execution of any such easement.  Tenant is hereby authorized to grant such easements across, under and 
over the Land as are necessary for rights of way, ingress and egress, and for the installation, construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of utility lines and related facilities serving the Land, 
including without limitation any such easements required to connect the Land to a receiver of electric power 
generated at the Land. 

 27. Access.  Tenant, and Tenant’s employees, agents, contractors, guests, subtenants and 
designees shall have access to the Land at all times after the Effective Date and during the Term.  On and 
after the Construction Commencement Date, neither Landlord nor any agent of Landlord shall, without a 
Tenant representative, enter upon any portion of the Land. 

 28. Confidentiality. Landlord acknowledges that Landlord may become privy to confidential 
information of Tenant, in addition to information regarding the terms of this Lease.  Landlord therefore 
agrees to take all steps to ensure that any information with regard to Tenant, Tenant’s Intended Use of the 
Land (and improvements thereon) and/or this Lease, shall remain confidential and shall not be disclosed or 
revealed to outside sources by Landlord or by its employees, officers, agents, counsel, accountants or 



 
10 

#5265596v5 

representatives, except as otherwise required by law or court order.  The terms of this Section 28 shall 
survive the expiration or any sooner termination of this Lease. 

 29. Estoppel.  Within fifteen (15) business days after written request therefor by Tenant, 
Landlord shall deliver a certificate to Tenant, Tenant’s lender (if applicable) and/or any proposed assignee 
of Tenant, in a commercially reasonable form, setting forth the terms of this Lease, the absence of default 
hereunder, and such other reasonable terms as may be requested by Tenant or by such lender or assignee.  
If the Landlord fails to respond within such fifteen (15) business day period, then, in addition to such failure 
constituting an event of default, all matters set forth in the estoppel certificate shall be deemed to be true, 
accurate and complete. 

 30. Leasehold Mortgages.  Tenant and every successor and assign of Tenant is hereby given 
the right by Landlord, without Landlord’s consent, to mortgage its interest in this Lease and assign its 
interest in this Lease as collateral security for such mortgage.  If Tenant and/or Tenant’s successors and 
assigns shall mortgage all or part of its interest in this Lease and if Tenant or the holder of such mortgage 
shall send to Landlord a true copy thereof together with written notice specifying the name and address of 
the mortgagee and the pertinent recording data with respect to such mortgage, Landlord agrees that so long 
as the leasehold mortgage remains unsatisfied of record or until written notice of satisfaction is given by 
the holder to Landlord, the following provisions shall apply: 

(a) Landlord shall, upon serving Tenant with any notice of default, simultaneously serve a 
copy of such notice upon the holder of the leasehold mortgage.  The leasehold mortgagee shall have the 
same period, after service of such notice upon it, to remedy or cause to be remedied the defaults complained 
of, and Landlord shall accept such leasehold mortgagee’s acts if they had been performed by Tenant. 

(b) Landlord agrees that in the event of termination of this Lease by reason of any default by 
Tenant, that Landlord will enter into a new lease for the Land with the leasehold mortgagee or its nominee 
for the remainder of the Term effective as of the date of such termination, at the rent and other charges, and 
upon the terms, provisions, covenants and agreement contained in this Lease, provided: 

(i)  the mortgagee or its nominee shall pay to Landlord, at the time of execution and 
delivery of the new lease, any and all sums which would then be due pursuant to this Lease but for 
such termination; and 

(ii) the mortgagee or its nominee shall perform and observe all covenants in this Lease 
to be performed by Tenant and shall further remedy any other conditions which Tenant was 
obligated to perform under the terms of this Lease. 

(c) Landlord shall, upon request, execute, acknowledge and deliver to each leasehold 
mortgagee an agreement prepared at the sole cost and expense of Tenant, in form satisfactory to the 
leasehold mortgagee and to Landlord, between Landlord, Tenant and the leasehold mortgagee confirming 
the provisions of this Section 30. 

The term “mortgage,” as used in this Section 30, shall include mortgages, deeds of trust and/or whatever 
security instruments are used in the State in which the Land are located from time to time, as well as 
financing statements, security agreements and other documentation required pursuant to the Uniform 
Commercial Code. 

 31. Bankruptcy.  In the event (i) the Land or any rights therein shall be levied on by execution 
or other process of law by a creditor of either party, (ii) if either party shall be adjudged bankrupt or 



 
11 

#5265596v5 

insolvent, (iii) if any party has a petition in bankruptcy filed against it, and such petition is not dismissed 
within ninety (90) days after the filing thereof, (iv) if any receiver shall be appointed for the business and 
property of either party, or (v) if any assignment shall be made of either party’s property for the benefit of 
creditors, thereby diminishing any right or privilege granted by this Lease to the other party, then the other 
party may terminate this Lease forthwith and otherwise exercise any other remedy it may have at law or 
equity or under this Lease. 

 32. Nature and Extent of Agreement/Amendments.  This Lease contains the complete 
agreement of the parties regarding the terms and conditions of the lease of the Land, and there are no oral 
or written conditions, terms, understandings or other agreements pertaining thereto which have not been 
incorporated herein.  This Lease creates only the relationship of landlord and tenant between the parties as 
to the Land; and nothing in this Lease shall in any way be construed to impose upon either party any 
obligations or restrictions not expressly set forth in this Lease.  No amendment or modification of this Lease 
shall be binding unless in writing and duly executed by both parties. 

 33. Counterparts.  This Lease may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original once executed and delivered.  

 

 [REMAINDER OF PAGE BLANK.  SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW.] 

  



 
12 

#5265596v5 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Lease by authority duly 
given, as of the day and year first above written. 

 

LANDLORD: 

 
By:        
 
Name:   __________________________     

 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF      
 

I, ________________________________, a Notary Public for _____________ County, South 
Carolina, certify that ______________________________, either being personally known to me or proven 
by satisfactory evidence, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the voluntary due 
execution of the foregoing instrument.   

WITNESS my hand and official stamp or seal this ______ day of __________, 20___. 

 
             
      Notary Public 
      Printed/Typed Name:      
 
 
My Commission Expires:      
 
[AFFIX NOTARIAL STAMP OR SEAL] 
 



 
13 

#5265596v5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Lease by authority duly 
given, as of the day and year first above written. 

 

TENANT: 

DUKE ENERGY, LLC 

 
By:        

       
      Name: __________________________ 

 
Title: ___________________________ 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF      
 

I, ________________________________, a Notary Public for _____________ County, North 
Carolina, certify that _____________________, either being personally known to me or proven by 
satisfactory evidence, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he/she is 
_______________________, of DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability 
company, and that he/she, as ____________________________, being authorized to do so, voluntarily 
executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of the limited liability company in the capacity indicated.   

WITNESS my hand and official stamp or seal this ______ day of __________, 20___. 

 
             
      Notary Public 
      Printed/Typed Name:      
 
 
My Commission Expires:      
 
[AFFIX NOTARIAL STAMP OR SEAL] 



ANDERSON COUNTY 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-012 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING (1) THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE 
IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (THE “COUNTY”) AND ONE OR MORE 
COMPANIES COLLECTIVELY IDENTIFIED FOR THE TIME BEING AS PROJECT 
HIGHWAY 81 LOGISTICS, ACTING FOR ITSELF OR THEMSELVES, ONE OR 
MORE AFFILIATES, AND/OR OTHER PROJECT SPONSORS (COLLECTIVELY, 
THE “COMPANY”), PURSUANT TO WHICH THE COUNTY SHALL COVENANT 
TO ACCEPT CERTAIN NEGOTIATED FEES IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES 
WITH RESPECT TO THE ESTABLISHMENT AND/OR EXPANSION OF CERTAIN 
FACILITIES IN THE COUNTY (THE “PROJECT”); (2) THE BENEFITS OF A MULTI-
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL OR BUSINESS PARK TO BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE 
COMPANY AND THE PROJECT AND THE DISTRIBUTION OF REVENUES 
GENERATED FROM THE PROJECT WITHIN THE COUNTY; (3) CERTAIN 
SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROJECT; 
AND (4) OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 

Council (the “Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of 
Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), particularly Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the 
“Negotiated FILOT Act”), and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (the “Multi-County Park Act”, or, as to 
Section 4-1-175 thereof, and by incorporation Section 4-29-68 of the Code, the “Special Source Act”) 
(collectively, the “Act”) and by Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution: (i) to enter 
into agreements with certain investors to construct, operate, maintain, and improve certain projects through 
which the economic development of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade 
developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate and remain in the State and thus 
utilize and employ the manpower, agricultural products, and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant 
with such investors to accept certain fee in lieu of ad valorem tax (“FILOT”) payments, including, but not 
limited to, negotiated FILOT payments made pursuant to the Negotiated FILOT Act, with respect to a 
project; (iii) to permit investors to claim special source revenue credits against their FILOT payments 
(“Special Source Credits”) to pay certain costs of infrastructure serving the County or improved or 
unimproved real property and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation 
of a manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County 
(“Special Source Improvements”); and (iv) to create, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a 
multi-county industrial or business park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax credits to such 
investors and to facilitate the grant of Special Source Credits; and 

WHEREAS, a company identified for the time being as Project Highway 81 Logistics Operating 
Company, and a company identified for the time being as Project Highway 81 Logistics Real Property 
Owner, each acting for itself, one or more affiliates, and/or other project sponsors (collectively, the 
“Companies”), propose to establish and/or expand certain facilities at one or more locations in the County 
(the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Companies anticipate that, should their plans proceed as expected, the Companies 
will invest, or cause to be invested, at least $45,343,000, in the aggregate, in the Project (the “Minimum 
Investment Requirement”) and create, or cause to be created, at least 12 new, full-time jobs, in the 
aggregate, at the Project (the “Minimum Jobs Requirement”); and 



WHEREAS, on the basis of the information supplied to it by the Companies, the County has 
determined, inter alia, that the Project would subserve the purposes of the Act and has made certain findings 
pertaining thereto in accordance with the Act; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with such findings and determinations and in order to induce the 
Companies to locate the Project in the County, the Council adopted Resolution No. 2022-022 on April 5, 
2022 (the “Inducement Resolution”), whereby the County agreed to provide the benefits of a negotiated 
FILOT, Special Source Credits, and a multi-county industrial or business park with respect to the Project; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the County and the Companies have agreed to the specific terms and conditions of 

such arrangements as set forth herein and in a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement by and between 
the County and the Companies with respect to the Project (the “Incentive Agreement”), the form of which 
Incentive Agreement is presented to this meeting, and which Incentive Agreement is to be dated as of 
[____________], 2022, or such other date as the parties thereto may agree; and  

 
WHEREAS, it appears that the Incentive Agreement now before this meeting is in appropriate form 

and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered by the County for the purposes intended. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council, as follows: 

Section 1. As contemplated by Section 12-44-40(I) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, the findings 
and determinations set forth in the Inducement Resolution are hereby ratified and confirmed.  In the event 
of any disparity or ambiguity between the terms and provisions of the Inducement Resolution and the terms 
and provisions of this Ordinance and the Incentive Agreement, the terms and provisions of this Ordinance 
and the Incentive Agreement shall control.  Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall 
have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Incentive Agreement.  Additionally, based on information 
provided to the County by the Companies with respect to the Project, the County makes the following 
findings and determinations: 

(a) The Project will constitute a “project” within the meaning of the Negotiated FILOT 
Act; and 

(b) The Project, and the County’s actions herein, will subserve the purposes of the 
Negotiated FILOT Act; and 

(c) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the State and the 
County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise 
adequately provided locally; and 

(d) The Project gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or incorporated 
municipality or a charge against its general credit or taxing power; and 

(e) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and 
public purposes; and 

(f) The benefits of the Project are greater than the costs. 

Section 2.  



(a) The County hereby agrees to enter into the Incentive Agreement with the 
Companies, which agreement shall be in the form of a fee agreement, pursuant to the Negotiated 
FILOT Act, and whereby the Companies will agree to satisfy, or cause to be satisfied, certain 
investment requirements with respect to the Project within certain prescribed time periods in 
accordance with the Negotiated FILOT Act and the County, under certain conditions set forth in 
the Incentive Agreement, will agree to accept certain negotiated fee in lieu of ad valorem tax 
(“Negotiated FILOT”) payments with respect to the Project, as set forth in Section 2(b) hereof and 
in accordance with the terms of the Incentive Agreement. 

(b)  

(i) The Negotiated FILOT shall be determined using: (1) an 
assessment ratio of 6%, (2) a millage rate of 332.07 mills, which millage rate or 
millage rates shall be fixed pursuant to Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(b)(i) of the 
Negotiated FILOT Act for the full term of the Negotiated FILOT; (3) the fair 
market value of the Project, determined in accordance with the Negotiated FILOT 
Act; and (4) and such other terms and conditions as will be specified in the 
Incentive Agreement, including, without limitation, that (A) the Companies, in 
their sole discretion, may dispose of property and replace property subject to 
Negotiated FILOT payments to the maximum extent permitted by the Negotiated 
FILOT Act, and (B) the real property portion of the economic development 
property comprising the Project shall be reported at its fair market value for ad 
valorem taxes as determined by appraisal as if such property were not subject to 
the Negotiated FILOT, in accordance with, and as set forth in, Section 12-44-
50(A)(1)(c)(i) of the Negotiated FILOT Act. 

(ii) The Negotiated FILOT shall be calculated as provided in this 
Section 2(b) for all Negotiated FILOT Property placed in service during the 
Investment Period.  For each annual increment of investment in Negotiated FILOT 
Property, the annual Negotiated FILOT payments shall be payable for a payment 
period of thirty (30) years.  Accordingly, if such Negotiated FILOT Property is 
placed in service during more than one year, each year’s investment during the 
Investment Period shall be subject to the Negotiated FILOT for a payment period 
of thirty (30) years, up to an aggregate of thirty-five (35) years, or, if the Investment 
Period is extended as set forth in the Incentive Agreement, up to an aggregate of 
forty (40) years. 

Section 3.  

(a) The County will use its best efforts to ensure that the Project will be included, if 
not already included, and will remain, within the boundaries of a multi-county industrial or business 
park (the “Multi-County Park”) pursuant to the provisions of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
VIII, Section 13(D) of the State Constitution on terms which provide the Companies and the Project 
with any additional benefits afforded by the laws of the State for projects located within multi-
county industrial or business parks, and which facilitate the County’s provision, and the 
Companies’ receipt, of the Special Source Credits described herein, all in accordance with the terms 
of the Incentive Agreement. 

(b) Revenues generated for the Multi-County Park from the Project through 
Negotiated FILOT payments to be retained by Anderson County (“Net Park Fees”) under the 



agreement governing the Multi-County Park shall be distributed within Anderson County in 
accordance with this subsection: 

(1) 15% of Net Park Fees shall be deposited to Bond Fund created by 
Ordinance 2018-042 and used as required or permitted thereby;  

(2) 35% of Net Park Fees, and any surplus money under Ordinance 2018-042, 
shall be deposited to the Capital Renewal and Replacement Fund of Anderson County; and 

(3) Remaining Net Park Fees shall be disbursed to each of the taxing entities 
in Anderson County which levy an old ad valorem property tax in any of the areas 
comprising the Anderson County portion of the Multi-County Park in the same percentage 
as is equal to that taxing entity’s percentage of the millage rate (and proportion of operating 
and debt service millage) being levied in the current tax year for property tax purposes. 

Section 4.  

(a) As an additional incentive to induce the Companies to locate the Project in the 
County, and as reimbursement for investment in Special Source Improvements, and subject to the 
requirements of the Special Source Act, the County hereby agrees that the Companies shall be 
entitled to receive, and the County shall provide, Special Source Credits against each Negotiated 
FILOT payment due from each Company with respect to its respective portion of the Project for a 
period of fifteen (15) consecutive tax years, commencing with the tax year for which the initial 
Negotiated FILOT payment is due with respect to such portion of the Project, as follows: (i) for the 
first five (5) such tax years, in an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of each such Negotiated 
FILOT payment; and (ii) for the remaining ten (10) such tax years, in an amount equal to forty 
percent (40%) of each such Negotiated FILOT payment; provided, however, if, by the second 
anniversary of the “commencement date” (here and hereinafter, as such term is defined in the 
Negotiated FILOT Act), new job creation at the Project by the Companies and any other Sponsors 
or Sponsor Affiliates is not at least 10 new, full-time jobs, in the aggregate, at the Project and/or 
total investment in the Project by the Companies and any other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates is 
not at least $35,000,000, in the aggregate, the applicable Special Source Credit percentage shall be 
reduced from fifty percent (50%) to thirty percent (30%), on a prospective basis, commencing with 
the Negotiated FILOT payment corresponding to the Property Tax Year containing the second 
anniversary of the commencement date; provided, further, however, that in the event of a reduction 
of the Special Source Credit percentage set forth above, if the Companies satisfy both the Minimum 
Investment Requirement and the Minimum Jobs Requirement by the end of the Compliance Period 
(i.e., the fifth anniversary of the commencement date), such reduced Special Source Credit 
percentage shall revert to the original Special Source Credit percentage of forty percent (40%) 
prospectively, commencing with the Negotiated FILOT payment corresponding to the Property 
Tax Year containing the last day of the Compliance Period. 

(b) In accordance with the Special Source Act, the Special Source Credits authorized 
herein shall not, in the aggregate, exceed the aggregate cost of Special Source Improvements 
funded from time to time by the Companies in connection with the Project. 

Section 5. The form, provisions, terms, and conditions of the Incentive Agreement presented 
to this meeting and filed with the Clerk to the Council are hereby approved, and all of the provisions, terms, 
and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the Incentive Agreement was set 
out in this Ordinance in its entirety.  The Chairman of the Council is hereby authorized, empowered, and 
directed to execute the Incentive Agreement in the name and on behalf of the County; the Clerk to the 



Council is hereby authorized, empowered and directed to attest the same; and the Chairman of the Council 
is further authorized, empowered, and directed to deliver the Incentive Agreement to the Companies.  The 
Incentive Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or 
with such changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the rights of the County thereunder and 
as shall be approved by the official or officials of the County executing the same, upon the advice of 
counsel, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes 
or revisions therein from the form of the Incentive Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 6. The Chairman of the Council, the County Administrator of the County, and the 
Clerk to the Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby each authorized, empowered, and directed 
to do any and all things necessary or proper to effect the performance of all obligations of the County under 
and pursuant to Incentive Agreement. 

Section 7. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase, or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, 
phrases, and provisions hereunder. 

Section 8. All orders, ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are to the 
extent of such conflict hereby repealed.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after 
its passage and approval. 

[End of Ordinance] 
  



Enacted and approved, in meeting duly assembled, this ___ day of _________________, 2022. 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: __________________________________________ 
       Tommy Dunn, Chairman of County Council 
       Anderson County, South Carolina 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 
Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 
Renee D. Watts, Clerk to County Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________________ 
Leon Harmon, County Attorney 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

First Reading: April 5, 2022 
Second Reading: May 3, 2022 
Public Hearing: __________, 2022 
Third Reading:  __________, 2022 
 
 
 



DRAFT 4/29/2022 
 
 
 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

by and between 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

and 

PROJECT HIGHWAY 81 LOGISTICS OPERATING COMPANY 
 

and 
 

PROJECT HIGHWAY 81 LOGISTICS REAL PROPERTY OWNER 
 

Dated as of [____________], 2022 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

i 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................. 2 
Section 1.01. Definitions.................................................................................................. 2 
Section 1.02. References to Agreement ........................................................................... 8 
Section 1.03. Project-Related Investments ...................................................................... 8 

 

ARTICLE II REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES................................................ 8 
Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by County ............................................... 8 
Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties by the Operating Company .................... 9 
Section 2.03. Representations and Warranties by the Real Property Owner ................... 9 

ARTICLE III COVENANTS OF COUNTY ....................................................................... 10 
Section 3.01. Agreement to Accept Negotiated FILOT Payments ................................ 10 
Section 3.02. Special Source Credits ............................................................................. 10 
Section 3.03. Multi-County Park Designation ............................................................... 11 
Section 3.04. Commensurate Benefits ........................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE IV COVENANTS OF THE COMPANIES ........................................................ 13 
Section 4.01. Investment in Project. .............................................................................. 13 
Section 4.02. Failure to Satisfy Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement 

and/or Minimum Jobs Requirement......................................................... 15 
Section 4.03. Payment of Administration Expenses ...................................................... 15 
Section 4.04. Use of Project for Lawful Activities ........................................................ 16 
Section 4.05. Maintenance of Existence ........................................................................ 16 
Section 4.06. Records and Reports ................................................................................ 17 
Section 4.07. Funding for Special Source Improvements .............................................. 18 
Section 4.08. Indemnification Covenants ...................................................................... 18 
Section 4.09. Operating Company Certification ............................................................ 18 

ARTICLE V FEES IN LIEU OF TAXES ........................................................................... 20 
Section 5.01. Payment of Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes ....................................... 20 
Section 5.02. Statutory Lien........................................................................................... 25 

ARTICLE VI THIRD PARTY ARRANGEMENTS ........................................................... 25 
Section 6.01. Conveyance of Liens and Interests; Assignment ..................................... 25 
Section 6.02. Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates .............................................................. 26 

ARTICLE VII TERM; TERMINATION............................................................................... 27 
Section 7.01. Term ......................................................................................................... 27 



 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 (continued) 

Page 

ii 
   

Section 7.02. Termination .............................................................................................. 27 

ARTICLE VIII EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ................................................ 28 
Section 8.01. Events of Default ..................................................................................... 28 
Section 8.02. Remedies on Event of Default ................................................................. 28 
Section 8.03. Defaulted Payments ................................................................................. 29 
Section 8.04. Default by County .................................................................................... 29 

ARTICLE IX MISCELLANEOUS ...................................................................................... 29 
Section 9.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative ............................................................ 29 
Section 9.02. Successors and Assigns............................................................................ 29 
Section 9.03. Notices; Demands; Requests.................................................................... 29 
Section 9.04. Applicable Law ........................................................................................ 31 
Section 9.05. Entire Understanding ............................................................................... 31 
Section 9.06. Severability .............................................................................................. 31 
Section 9.07. Headings and Table of Contents; References .......................................... 31 
Section 9.08. Multiple Counterparts .............................................................................. 31 
Section 9.09. Amendments ............................................................................................ 31 
Section 9.10. Waiver ...................................................................................................... 31 
Section 9.11. Further Proceedings ................................................................................. 31 
Section 9.12. Disparity or Ambiguity with Inducement Resolution .............................. 31 

 
 
EXHIBIT A  LAND DESCRIPTION........................................................................................ A-1 
 

 



 

 1  

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) dated 
to be effective as of [______________], 2022, by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina 
(the “County”), and a company identified for the time being as PROJECT HIGHWAY 81 
LOGISTICS OPERATING COMPANY (the “Operating Company”), and a company identified 
for the time being as PROJECT HIGHWAY 81 LOGISTICS REAL PROPERTY OWNER (the 
“Real Property Owner”), each acting for itself, one or more affiliates, and/or other project sponsors 
(each of the Operating Company and the Real Property Owner, a “Company” and collectively, the 
“Companies”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council (the “Council”), is 
authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), particularly Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the 
“Negotiated FILOT Act”) and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (the “Multi-County Park Act”, or, as 
to Section 4-1-175 thereof, and by incorporation Section 4-29-68 of the Code, the “Special Source 
Act”) (collectively, the “Act”) and by Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina 
Constitution: (i) to enter into agreements with certain investors to construct, operate, maintain, and 
improve certain projects through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina 
(the “State”) will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial 
enterprises to locate and remain in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, agricultural 
products, and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such investors to accept certain 
fee in lieu of ad valorem tax (“FILOT”) payments, including, but not limited to, negotiated FILOT 
payments made pursuant to the Negotiated FILOT Act, with respect to a project; (iii) to permit 
investors to claim special source revenue credits against their FILOT payments to pay certain costs 
of infrastructure serving the County or improved or unimproved real property and personal 
property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing or 
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County; and (iv) to 
create, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county industrial or business park 
in order to afford certain enhanced income tax credits to such investors and to facilitate the grant 
of special source revenue credits; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Companies propose to establish and/or expand certain facilities at one or 

more locations in the County (the “Project”), and anticipate that, should their plans proceed as 
expected, the Companies will invest, or cause to be invested, in the aggregate, at least $45,343,000 
in the Project and will create, or cause to be created, in the aggregate, at least 12 new, full-time 
jobs at the Project by the end of the Compliance Period (as defined herein), as set forth in greater 
detail herein; and 

WHEREAS, the County has determined that the Project will subserve the purposes of the 
Act and has made certain findings pertaining thereto in accordance with the Act; and 



  

 2  

WHEREAS, in accordance with such findings and determinations and in order to induce 
the Companies to locate the Project in the County, the Council adopted Resolution No. 2022-022 
on April 5, 2022 (the “Inducement Resolution”), whereby the County agreed to provide the 
benefits of a negotiated FILOT, special source revenue credits, and a multi-county industrial or 
business park with respect to the Project, the terms of all of which are set forth in greater detail in 
this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the County has determined that it is in the best interests of the County to enter 
into this Agreement with the Companies, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, and, 
by Ordinance No. 2022-012 enacted by the Council on [__________], 2022, approved the form, 
terms and conditions of this Agreement and ratified all prior actions taken with respect to the 
Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the mutual covenants contained 
herein, the above recitals which are incorporated herein by reference, the potential investment to 
be made, or caused to be made, and the potential jobs to be created, or caused to be created, by the 
Companies which contribute to the tax base and the economic welfare of the County, the respective 
representations and agreements hereinafter contained, and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the County and the 
Companies agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01. Definitions.  In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in this 
Agreement, the following words and terms as used herein and in the preambles hereto shall have 
the following meanings unless the context or use indicates another or different meaning or intent. 

“Act” shall mean, collectively, the Negotiated FILOT Act and the Multi-County Park Act, 
including, without limitation, the Special Source Act. 

“Administration Expenses” shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by 
the County in the fulfillment of its obligations under this Agreement and in the implementation of 
its terms and provisions, including reasonable attorney’s fees, but excluding any expenses incurred 
by the County in defending either challenges to the incentives provided herein by third parties or 
suits brought by any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate under Section 8.04 
hereof; provided, however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense 
unless the Company, or other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, required to pay such expense 
hereunder is provided an itemized statement of all such expenses incurred and provided, further, 
that nothing herein shall be construed as prohibiting the County from engaging the counsel of its 
choice for matters deemed necessary and prudent by the County.  

“Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other 
Person or entity which now or hereafter directly or indirectly owns all or part of any Company or 



  

 3  

any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, or which is now or hereafter directly 
or indirectly owned in whole or in part by any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, 
as the case may be, or by any partner, shareholder or owner of any Company or any other Sponsor 
or Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, and shall also include any subsidiary, affiliate or other 
Person, individual, or entity who now or hereafter bears a relationship to any Company or any 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, as described in Section 267(b) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. 

“Agreement” shall mean this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement as originally 
executed and from time to time supplemented or amended as permitted herein. 

“Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, unless the 
context clearly requires otherwise. 

 “Company” shall mean each of the Operating Company and the Real Property Owner, 
each with respect to its respective portion of the Project. 

“Companies” shall mean the Operating Company and the Real Property Owner, 
collectively. 

“Compliance Period” shall mean the period commencing with the first day that Negotiated 
FILOT Property is purchased or acquired, whether before or after the date of this Agreement, and 
ending on the fifth (5th) anniversary of the end of the Property Tax Year in which the initial 
Negotiated FILOT Property comprising all or a portion of the Project is placed in service, all as 
specified in Section 12-44-30(13) of the Negotiated FILOT Act.  It is presently anticipated, but 
not required, that the initial Negotiated FILOT Property comprising all or a portion of the Project 
will be placed in service in the Property Tax Year ending on [December 31, 202_], and, in such 
event, the Compliance Period will end on [December 31, 202_].  

“Council” shall mean the governing body of the County and its successors. 

“County” shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and 
a political subdivision of the State, and its successors and assigns. 

“Credit Eligible Entity” shall have the meaning specified in Section 3.02(a) hereof. 

“Deficiency Payment” shall have the meaning specified in Section 5.01(e) hereof. 

“Department of Revenue” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue and any 
successor thereof. 

“Event of Default” shall mean an Event of Default, as set forth in Section 8.01 hereof. 

“Existing Property” shall mean property which will not qualify for the Negotiated FILOT 
pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the Negotiated FILOT Act, including, without limitation, 



  

 4  

property which has been subject to ad valorem taxes in the State prior to commencement of the 
Investment Period and property included in the Project as part of the repair, alteration, or 
modification of such previously taxed property; provided, however, that Existing Property shall 
not include: (a) the Land; (b) property acquired or constructed by or on behalf of any Company or 
any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate during the Investment Period which has not been placed in 
service in this State prior to the commencement of the Investment Period notwithstanding that ad 
valorem taxes have heretofore been paid with respect to such property, or property which has been 
placed in service in the State pursuant to an inducement agreement or other preliminary approval 
by the County, including the Inducement Resolution, prior to execution of this Agreement pursuant 
to Section 12-44-40(E) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, which property shall qualify as Negotiated 
FILOT Property; (c) property purchased by or on behalf of any Company or any other Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate during the Investment Period in a transaction other than between any of the 
entities specified in Section 267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, as defined under Chapter 6 of 
Title 12 of the Code as of the time of the transfer, to the extent that such Company or such other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate invests at least an additional $45,000,000 in the Project, exclusive of 
the property identified in this subsection (c); or (d) modifications which constitute an expansion 
of the real property portion of Existing Property. 

“FILOT” shall mean fee in lieu of ad valorem property taxes.   

“FILOT Payment” or “FILOT Payments” shall mean the FILOT payments to be made by 
any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate with respect to its respective portion of 
the Project, whether made as Negotiated FILOT Payments pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof or as 
FILOT payments made pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act. 

“Investment Period” shall mean the period for completion of the Project, which shall 
initially be equal to the Compliance Period; provided, however, that, if the Minimum Contractual 
Investment Requirement is satisfied by the end of the Compliance Period, the Investment Period 
shall be automatically extended, without further action or proceedings of the County or the 
Council, by five (5) years beyond the Compliance Period to end on the tenth (10th) anniversary of 
the end of the Property Tax Year in which the initial Negotiated FILOT Property comprising all 
or a portion of the Project is placed in service, all in accordance with Section 12-44-30(13) of the 
Negotiated FILOT Act; provided further that there shall be no extension of the period for meeting 
the Minimum Statutory Investment Requirement beyond the Compliance Period, all determined 
as specified in Section 12-44-30(13) of the Negotiated FILOT Act. In the event that the initial 
Negotiated FILOT Property comprising all or a portion of the Project is, as presently anticipated, 
placed in service in the Property Tax Year ending on [December 31, 202_], upon any such 
extension, the Investment Period would end on [December 31, 203_]. 

“Land” shall mean the land upon which the Project has been or will be acquired, 
constructed and equipped, as described in Exhibit A attached hereto, as Exhibit A may be revised, 
modified, or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the provisions hereof. 

“Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement” shall mean investment in the Project, 
within the period commencing on the first day that Project property comprising all or a portion of 



  

 5  

the Project is purchased or acquired, whether before or after the date of this Agreement, and ending 
at the end of the Compliance Period, by the Companies and all Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates, 
in the aggregate, of at least $45,343,000 (without regard to depreciation or other diminution in 
value). 

“Minimum Jobs Requirement” shall mean the creation at the Project of at least 12 new, 
full-time jobs in the County by the Companies and all other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates, in the 
aggregate, within the Compliance Period. 

“Minimum Statutory Investment Requirement” shall mean investment in the Project of not 
less than $2,500,000 within the Compliance Period, as set forth in Section 12-44-30(14) of the 
Negotiated FILOT Act, which investment amount shall be calculated in accordance with, and 
subject to, Section 12-44-130 of the Negotiated FILOT Act and Section 6.02 hereof. 

“Multi-County Park” shall mean the multi-county industrial or business park established 
pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act and the Multi-County Park Agreement, and any multi-
county industrial or business park which now or hereafter includes the Project and which is 
designated by the County as such pursuant to any agreement which supersedes or replaces the 
initial Multi-County Park Agreement. 

“Multi-County Park Act” shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code. 

“Multi-County Park Agreement” shall mean that certain multi-county park agreement 
between the County and Greenville County, South Carolina, dated as of December 1, 2010, as 
supplemented, modified or amended, and, as such agreement may be further supplemented, 
modified, amended or replaced from time to time. 

“Negotiated FILOT” or “Negotiated FILOT Payments” shall mean the FILOT payments 
due pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof with respect to that portion of the Project consisting of 
Negotiated FILOT Property qualifying under the Negotiated FILOT Act for the negotiated 
assessment ratio and millage rate or rates described in Section 5.01(b)(ii) hereof. 

“Negotiated FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code. 

“Negotiated FILOT Property” shall mean all Project property qualifying for the 
Negotiated FILOT as “economic development property” within the meaning of Section 12-44-
30(6) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, including, without limitation, each item of real and tangible 
personal property comprising the Project which is placed in service during the Investment Period 
and which meets the requirements of Sections 12-44-30(6) and 12-44-40(C) of the Negotiated 
FILOT Act, together with all Replacement Property, but excluding any Non-Qualifying Property 
and any Released Property.   

“Non-Qualifying Property” shall mean that portion of the real and personal property 
located on the Land, which does not qualify as Negotiated FILOT Property, such Non-Qualifying 
Property to include: (i) Existing Property; (ii) except as to Replacement Property, property which 



  

 6  

any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate places in service after the end of the 
Investment Period; and (iii) any other property which fails or ceases to qualify for Negotiated 
FILOT Payments under the Negotiated FILOT Act or under this Agreement, including without 
limitation property as to which any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate has 
terminated the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 4.01(e)(iii) hereof. 

“Operating Company” shall mean a company identified for the time being as Project 
Highway 81 Logistics Operating Company, and any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in 
any merger, consolidation or transfer of assets permitted under Sections 4.05 or 6.01 hereof or any 
other assignee or transferee hereunder which is designated by the Operating Company and 
approved by the County. 

“Person” shall mean and include any individual, association, unincorporated organization, 
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, or government or agency or 
political subdivision thereof. 

“Project” shall mean: (i) the Land and all buildings, structures, fixtures and other real 
property improvements now or hereafter constructed on the Land; (ii) all machinery, equipment, 
furnishings and other personal property now or hereafter acquired by or on behalf of any Company 
or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate for use on or about the Land; and (iii) any Replacement 
Property; provided, however, except as to Replacement Property, the term Project shall be deemed 
to include any such real property improvements and personal property, whether now existing or 
hereafter constructed, improved, acquired or equipped, only to the extent placed in service within 
the Investment Period. 

“Property Tax Year” shall mean the annual period which is equal to the fiscal year of the 
Companies, or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, i.e., with respect to the 
Operating Company, the annual period ending on [__________] of each year, and, with respect to 
the Real Property Owner, the annual period ending on [__________] of each year. 

“Real Property Owner” shall mean a company identified for the time being as Project 
Highway 81 Logistics Real Property Owner, and any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in 
any merger, consolidation or transfer of assets permitted under Sections 4.05 or 6.01 hereof or any 
other assignee or transferee hereunder which is designated by the Real Property Owner and 
approved by the County. 

“Released Property” shall include property which was initially Negotiated FILOT 
Property but which is scrapped, sold, disposed of, or released from this Agreement by any 
Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to Section 4.01(e) hereof and Section 
12-44-50(B) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, any portion of the Negotiated FILOT Property 
constituting infrastructure which any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate dedicates 
to the public use within the meaning of Section 12-6-3420(C) of the Code, or property which is 
damaged, destroyed, or taken by process of eminent domain and not restored or replaced. 



  

 7  

“Replacement Property” shall mean all property placed in service on the Land in 
substitution of, or as replacement for, any Negotiated FILOT Property which becomes Released 
Property, regardless of whether such property serves the same function as the property it replaces 
and regardless of whether more than one piece of such property replaces a single piece of the 
Negotiated FILOT Property, to the maximum extent that such property may be included in the 
calculation of the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 5.01(d) hereof and Section 12-44-60 of 
the Negotiated FILOT Act. 

“Special Source Act” shall mean Section 4-1-175 of the Code. 

“Special Source Credits” shall mean the special source revenue credits described in 
Section 3.02 hereof. 

“Special Source Improvements” shall mean, to the extent paid for by any Company or any 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, any infrastructure serving the economic development of the 
County and any improved or unimproved real property, buildings, structural components of 
buildings, fixtures, or other real property improvements, and personal property, including 
machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing or commercial enterprise in 
order to enhance the economic development of the County, all as set forth in the Special Source 
Act. For purposes of this Agreement, Special Source Improvements shall initially be deemed to 
include, without limitation, all roadwork, water, sewer, drainage, power and utility facilities 
serving the Project, as well as the Land, the buildings, fixtures and other real property 
improvements on the Land, and any additions or improvements to any of the foregoing, whether 
paid for by any Company or any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate directly or through lease payments. 
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the County, the Operating Company, 
and the Real Property Owner hereby agree that, to the maximum extent permitted by law, 
aggregate expenditures made by the Real Property Owner in Special Source Improvements shall 
be jointly allocated to the Operating Company and the Real Property Owner for purposes of 
receiving the Special Source Credits; provided, however, in the event that (i) a court of competent 
jurisdiction holds that such allocation provisions are invalid or unenforceable in any material 
respect, or should the Operating Company determine that there is reasonable doubt as to the 
validity or enforceability of such allocation provision and provide written notice to the County of 
such determination, and (ii) the Operating Company has made insufficient expenditures in Special 
Source Improvements, as initially delineated above, to offset any Special Source Credits it has 
theretofore received, or will receive, the Operating Company shall be hereby automatically 
deemed to have elected, on behalf of itself and as set forth above, to include personal property, 
including machinery and equipment, as Special Source Improvements as of the earlier of (i) 
effective date of any such holding of invalidity or unenforceability, or (ii) the date of any such 
written notice, as the case may be, subject to, and in accordance with, any applicable provisions of 
Section 4-29-68(A)(2)(ii) of the Code in the event that personal property is removed from the 
Project. 

“Sponsor” and “Sponsor Affiliate” shall mean an entity whose investment with respect to 
the Project will qualify for the Negotiated FILOT pursuant to Section 6.02 hereof and Sections 



  

 8  

12-44-30(19) or (20) and Section 12-44-130 of the Negotiated FILOT Act if the statutory 
investment requirements are met.  As of the original execution and delivery of this Agreement, 
[the only Sponsors are the Companies and there are no Sponsor Affiliates]. 

“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

“Term” shall mean the term of this Agreement, as set forth in Section 7.01 hereof. 

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the Negotiated 
FILOT Act. 

Section 1.02. References to Agreement. The words “hereof”, “herein”, “hereunder”, and 
other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole. 

Section 1.03. Project-Related Investments.  The term “investment” or “invest” as used 
herein shall include not only investments made by the Companies and any Sponsor Affiliates, but 
also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments made by or for the benefit of any 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project through federal, state, or local grants, 
to the extent such investments are subject to ad valorem taxes or FILOT Payments, as the case 
may be, by such Company. 

ARTICLE II 
 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties by County.  The County makes the 
following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein 
contained: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the 
State and is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act to enter into the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder. By 
proper action by the Council, the County has duly authorized the execution and delivery of 
this Agreement and has duly approved the Negotiated FILOT, Special Source Credits, and 
the inclusion and maintenance of the Project in the Multi-County Park, all as set forth 
herein, as well as any and all actions reasonably necessary and appropriate to consummate 
the transactions contemplated hereby. 

(b) On the basis of information supplied to it by the Companies, the County has 
determined the Project will subserve the purposes of the Act and has made all other findings 
of fact required by the Act in connection with the undertaking of the arrangements set forth 
herein. 

(c) This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered on behalf 
of the County.  The authorization, execution, and delivery of this Agreement and the 



  

 9  

performance by the County of its obligations hereunder will not, to the best knowledge of 
the County, conflict with or constitute a breach of, or a default under, any State law, court 
or administrative regulation, decree, order, provision of the Constitution or laws of the 
State relating to the establishment of the County or its affairs, or any material agreement, 
mortgage, lease, or other instrument to which the County is subject or by which it is bound, 
nor, to the best knowledge of the County, any existing law or the provisions of the 
Constitution of the State. 

(d) To the best knowledge of the County, no actions, suits, proceedings, 
inquiries, or investigations are pending or threatened against or affecting the County in any 
court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal, any of which, 
to the best knowledge of the County, could materially adversely affect this Agreement or 
which could, in any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement 
or the transactions contemplated hereby. 

Section 2.02. Representations and Warranties by the Operating Company.  The Operating 
Company makes the following representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on 
its part herein contained: 

(a) The Operating Company is a [___________] validly existing and in good 
standing under the laws of [____________] and is authorized to do business in the State of 
South Carolina, has all requisite power to enter into this Agreement and to carry out its 
obligations hereunder, and by proper action has been duly authorized to execute and deliver 
this Agreement.  The Operating Company’s fiscal year end is [_________] and the 
Operating Company will notify the County of any changes in the fiscal year of the 
Operating Company. 

(b) The Operating Company intends to operate the Project as facilities for 
[__________________]. 

(c) The agreements with the County with respect to the Negotiated FILOT, the 
Special Source Credits, and the Multi-County Park, as set forth herein, were factors in 
inducing the Operating Company to locate the Project within the County and the State. 

(d) To the best knowledge of the Operating Company, no actions, suits, 
proceedings, inquiries, or investigations are pending or threatened against or affecting the 
Operating Company in any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board 
or tribunal, which would materially adversely affect this Agreement or which would, in 
any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or the 
transactions contemplated hereby. 

Section 2.03. Representations and Warranties by the Real Property Owner.  The Real 
Property Owner makes the following representations and warranties as the basis for the 
undertakings on its part herein contained: 



  

 10  

(a) The Real Property Owner is a [___________] validly existing and in good 
standing under the laws of [____________] and is authorized to do business in the State of 
South Carolina, has all requisite power to enter into this Agreement and to carry out its 
obligations hereunder, and by proper action has been duly authorized to execute and deliver 
this Agreement.  The Real Property Owner’s fiscal year end is [_________] and the Real 
Property Owner will notify the County of any changes in the fiscal year of the Real Property 
Owner. 

(b) The Real Property Owner intends that the Project be operated as facilities 
for [__________________]. 

(c) The agreements with the County with respect to the Negotiated FILOT, the 
Special Source Credits, and the Multi-County Park, as set forth herein, were factors in 
inducing the Real Property Owner to locate the Project within the County and the State. 

(d) To the best knowledge of the Real Property Owner, no actions, suits, 
proceedings, inquiries, or investigations are pending or threatened against or affecting the 
Real Property Owner in any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board 
or tribunal, which would materially adversely affect this Agreement or which would, in 
any way, adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or the 
transactions contemplated hereby. 

ARTICLE III 
 

COVENANTS OF COUNTY 

Section 3.01. Agreement to Accept Negotiated FILOT Payments.  The County hereby 
agrees to accept Negotiated FILOT Payments in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.01 
hereof in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to that portion of the Project consisting of 
Negotiated FILOT Property until this Agreement expires or is sooner terminated. 

Section 3.02. Special Source Credits. 

(a) As reimbursement for investment in Special Source Improvements and 
subject to the requirements of the Special Source Act and Section 4.02 hereof, the County 
hereby agrees that the Companies and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate (each, a 
“Credit Eligible Entity”) shall be entitled to receive, and the County shall provide, Special 
Source Credits against each Negotiated FILOT Payment due from each such Credit 
Eligible Entity with respect to its respective portion the Project, for a period of fifteen (15) 
consecutive tax years, commencing with the tax year for which the initial Negotiated 
FILOT Payment is due with respect to such portion of the Project, as follows: (i) for the 
first five (5) such tax years, in an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of each such 
Negotiated FILOT Payment; and (ii) for the remaining ten (10) such tax years, in an amount 
equal to forty percent (40%) of each such Negotiated FILOT Payment; provided, however, 
if by the second anniversary of the “commencement date” (here and hereinafter, as such 



  

 11  

term is defined in the Negotiated FILOT Act), new job creation at the Project by the 
Companies and any other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates is not at least 10 new, full-time 
jobs, in the aggregate, at the Project and/or total investment in the Project by the Companies 
and any other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates is not at least $35,000,000, in the aggregate, 
the applicable Special Source Credit percentage shall be reduced from fifty percent (50%) 
to thirty percent (30%), on a prospective basis, commencing with the Negotiated FILOT 
Payment corresponding to the Property Tax Year containing the second anniversary of the 
commencement date; provided, further, however, that in the event of a reduction of the 
Special Source Credit percentage set forth above, if the Companies satisfy both the 
Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement and the Minimum Jobs Requirement by 
the end of the Compliance Period (i.e., the fifth anniversary of the commencement date), 
such reduced Special Source Credit percentage shall revert to the original Special Source 
Credit percentage of forty percent (40%) prospectively, commencing with the Negotiated 
FILOT Payment corresponding to the Property Tax Year containing the last day of the 
Compliance Period.  In accordance with the Special Source Act, the Special Source Credits 
authorized herein shall not, in the aggregate, exceed the aggregate cost of Special Source 
Improvements funded from time to time in connection with the Project by the Companies 
and all other Sponsor and Sponsor Affiliates.  

(b) The Special Source Credits to which a Credit Eligible Entity is entitled for 
each tax year of the period set forth in Section 3.02(a) hereof shall be reflected by the 
County on each bill sent by the County to such Credit Eligible Entity for each Negotiated 
FILOT Payment due from such Credit Eligible Entity with respect to each such tax year, 
by reducing the total original Negotiated FILOT Payment amount otherwise due from such 
Credit Eligible Entity for such tax year by the amount of Special Source Credits to which 
such Credit Eligible Entity is entitled for such tax year. 

(c) As provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, to the extent any Special 
Source Credits are taken against any Negotiated FILOT Payment on personal property, and 
the personal property is removed from the Project at any time during the term of this 
Agreement (and not replaced with qualifying Replacement Property), the amount of the 
Negotiated FILOT Payment due on such personal property for the year in which such 
personal property was removed from the Project shall be due for the two (2) years 
immediately following such removal. 

(d) THE SPECIAL SOURCE CREDITS AUTHORIZED HEREIN SHALL 
NOT CONSTITUTE A GENERAL OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY, BUT SHALL BE 
A LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE 
FILOT PAYMENTS RECEIVED BY THE COUNTY HEREUNDER WITH RESPECT 
TO THE PROJECT. 

Section 3.03. Multi-County Park Designation. The County agrees to use its best efforts to 
designate the Project, including, but not limited to the Land, as part of a Multi-County Park, if not 
already so designated, and agrees to use its best efforts to maintain the Project within the 



  

 12  

boundaries of the Multi-County Park pursuant to the provisions of the Multi-County Park Act and 
Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the State Constitution on terms, and for a duration, which facilitate 
the provision by the County, and the receipt by each Credit Eligible Entity, of the Special Source 
Credits set forth in Section 3.02 hereof. 

Section 3.04. Commensurate Benefits.  The parties hereto acknowledge the intent of this 
Agreement, in part, is to afford each Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate the 
benefits specified in this Article III in consideration of the Companies’ decision to locate the 
Project within the County, and this Agreement has been entered into in reliance upon the enactment 
of the Act and the County’s compliance with the requirements thereof.  In the event that a court of 
competent jurisdiction holds that the Act is, in whole or in part, unconstitutional or this Agreement, 
the Multi-County Park Agreement, or agreements similar in nature to this Agreement or the Multi-
County Park Agreement are invalid or unenforceable in any material respect, or should any 
Company determine there is a reasonable doubt as to the validity or enforceability of this 
Agreement or the Multi-County Park Agreement in any material respect, then, at the request of 
any Company, the County agrees to use its best efforts, and to take such other steps as may be 
necessary, to extend to each Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate the intended 
benefits of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the Negotiated FILOT and the Special 
Source Credits, and agrees, if requested by the Companies, to enter into a lease purchase agreement 
with the Companies and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to Section 12-44-160 of 
the Negotiated FILOT Act and Title 4, Chapter 29 or Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code, as applicable. 
In furtherance of this covenant, the County also agrees that, in the event that, for any reason, the 
Multi-County Park is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable 
in whole or in part, the Companies and the County express their intentions that the tax or FILOT 
payments be reformed so as to best afford the Companies and each other Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliate benefits commensurate with, but not in excess of, those intended under this Agreement, 
including but not limited to the Special Source Credits, as then permitted by law, including, 
without limitation, any benefits afforded under Title 12, Chapter 6, Title 4, Chapter 1, and Title 4, 
Chapter 29 of the Code, as applicable, to the extent allowed by law. Each Company acknowledges, 
if a court of competent jurisdiction holds all or part of the Negotiated FILOT Act is 
unconstitutional or otherwise illegal, the Negotiated FILOT Act currently provides that each 
Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate must transfer their respective portion of the 
Negotiated FILOT Property to the County within one hundred eighty (180) days following such 
determination in order for the Negotiated FILOT benefits to continue to apply to such property.  
In any such lease purchase agreement referenced above, the County, upon the conveyance of title 
to the Project to the County at the expense of the Companies or any other Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliate, as the case may be, agrees to lease the Project to the Companies or any such other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be.  At the end of the term of any such lease purchase 
agreement, and upon payment of all outstanding obligations incurred under such lease purchase 
agreement, each of the Companies and any such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall have the 
option to purchase its respective portion of the Project from the County for Ten Dollars ($10.00). 



  

 13  

ARTICLE IV 
 

COVENANTS OF THE COMPANIES 

Section 4.01. Investment in Project. 

(a) The Companies hereby agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to 
acquire, construct, equip, or improve or cause to be acquired, constructed, equipped, or 
improved, the Project, as the same shall be determined from time to time by the Companies 
in their sole discretion.  As required by Section 12-44-30(2) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, 
at least a portion of the Negotiated FILOT Property comprising the Project shall be placed 
in service no later than the end of the Property Tax Year which is three (3) years from the 
year in which this Agreement is entered, i.e., the Property Tax Year ending on [December 
31, 202_]. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, and to the maximum 
extent permitted by law, investment in the Project and job creation in the County by any 
and all other Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates shall together with investment in the Project 
and job creation in the County by the Companies, count toward all investment and job 
creation requirements, thresholds, and levels set forth in this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, the Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement, the Minimum Jobs 
Requirement, and, to the full extent permitted by the Negotiated FILOT Act, the Minimum 
Statutory Investment Requirement. Aggregate investment shall generally be determined by 
reference to the property tax returns of each Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliate filed with respect to the Project, including without limitation, each such entity’s 
SCDOR PT-300, or such comparable forms as the Department of Revenue may provide in 
connection with projects under the Act, without regard to depreciation or other diminution 
in value.  

(c) To encourage increased investment in the Project, the County hereby agrees 
that in the event the Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement is satisfied by the end 
of Compliance Period, the Investment Period shall be automatically extended, without 
further action or proceedings of the County or the Council, by five (5) years beyond the 
end of the Compliance Period, and the County hereby agrees to such extension.  There shall 
be no extension, however, beyond the Compliance Period of the period for meeting the 
Minimum Statutory Investment Requirement.  In the event that the initial Negotiated 
FILOT Property comprising all or a portion of the Project is, as the parties hereto presently 
anticipate, placed in service in the Property Tax Year ending on [December 31, 202_], and 
upon any such extension, the Investment Period would extend through [December 31, 
203_]. 

(d) Subject to the provisions of Sections 4.05 and 6.01 hereof, each Company 
and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall retain title to, or other property rights in, 
its respective portion of the Project throughout the Term, and each Company and each other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall have full right to mortgage, lease, or encumber all or 



  

 14  

any portion of its respective portion of the Project, including without limitation, in 
connection with any financing transactions, all without the consent of the County. 

(e) Each Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall have the 
right at any time and from time to time during the Term hereof to undertake any of the 
following: 

(i) Each Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate 
may, at its own expense, add to the Project all such real and personal property 
as such Company, or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, in its discretion 
deems useful or desirable, including, without limitation, Negotiated FILOT 
Property, without any limit as to the amount thereof. 

(ii) Subject to the provisions of Section 5.01(f) hereof, in any 
instance when any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, in its 
discretion, determines any property included in its respective portion of the 
Project, including without limitation, any Negotiated FILOT Property, has 
become inadequate, obsolete, worn out, unsuitable, undesirable, or 
unnecessary for operations at the Project, such Company or such other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate may remove such property from its respective 
portion of the Project and sell, trade in, exchange, or otherwise dispose of such 
property as a whole or in part without the consent of the County; provided, 
however, any such removal by the Real Property Owner, or any Sponsor 
Affiliate designated hereunder by the Real Property Owner, shall require the 
prior written consent of the Operating Company. 

(iii) Each Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate 
may, at any time and in its discretion by written notice to the County, remove 
any Project property including, but not limited to, Negotiated FILOT Property, 
real or personal, from its respective portion of the Project or from the 
provisions of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the Negotiated 
FILOT arrangement set forth in this Agreement, and retain such property for 
use as part of its operations in the County, whether or not such property 
remains as part of the Project, and effective as of the date of any such removal, 
such property will be subject to ad valorem taxes or to FILOT payments 
pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be; provided, that, any 
such notice requirement may be, but shall not be required to be, satisfied by 
property tax returns filed with respect to such entity’s respective portion of the 
Project and any other such property, including without limitation, such entity’s 
SCDOR PT-300, or such comparable forms as the Department of Revenue 
may provide in connection with projects under the Act, and in such event, any 
such removal reflected by any such return shall be deemed to be effective as 
of the date of such removal; provided, however, any such removal by the Real 
Property Owner, or Sponsor Affiliate designated hereunder by the Real 



  

 15  

Property Owner, shall require the prior written consent of the Operating 
Company. 

(iv) If any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate 
sells, leases, or otherwise disposes of any portion of, or adds to, the Land, or 
removes any portion of the Land from its respective portion of the Project 
while retaining such property for use as part of its operations in the County, 
all as permitted herein, such Company or such Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate 
shall deliver to the County a revised Exhibit A to this Agreement or 
supplements to Exhibit A reflecting any such addition, disposal or removal 
and such revised or supplemented Exhibit A shall, effective as of the date of 
any such transaction, addition, disposal, or removal, be automatically made a 
part of this Agreement without further action or proceedings by the County or 
the Council; provided, that any requirement to provide such schedules or 
supplements to the County may be satisfied by property tax returns filed with 
respect to such entity’s respective portion of the Project and any other such 
property, including without limitation, such entity’s SCDOR PT-300, or such 
comparable forms as the Department of Revenue may provide in connection 
with projects under the Act, and in such event, any such addition, disposal, or 
removal reflected by any such return shall be automatically deemed effective 
as of the date of any such addition, disposal, or removal; provided, however, 
any such addition, disposal, or removal by the Real Property Owner, or any 
Sponsor Affiliate designated hereunder by the Real Property Owner, shall 
require the prior written consent of the Operating Company. 

(v) All Negotiated FILOT Property sold or otherwise disposed of 
under this Section shall be deemed Released Property for purposes of this 
Agreement. 

Section 4.02. Failure to Satisfy Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement and/or 
Minimum Jobs Requirement. If either or both the Minimum Contractual Investment Requirement 
and the Minimum Jobs Requirement are not satisfied by the end of the Compliance Period, each 
of the following subsections (a) – (c) shall apply:  

(a) Each Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall continue 
to be eligible for the Negotiated FILOT described in Section 5.01 hereof so long as the 
Minimum Statutory Investment Requirement is satisfied by the end of the Compliance 
Period, as applicable under and pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof. 

(b) Each Credit Eligible Entity shall continue to be eligible for Special Source 
Credits against each FILOT Payment due from such Credit Eligible Entity with respect to 
its respective portion of the Project for the remaining tax years of the period set forth in 
Section 3.02(a) hereof; provided, however, that the applicable Special Source Credits 
percentage shall be reduced to thirty percent (30%), unless already so reduced pursuant to 
Section 3.02(a) hereof, prospectively, commencing with the Negotiated FILOT Payment 



  

 16  

corresponding to the Property Tax Year containing the last day of the Compliance Period 
(e.g., the Negotiated FILOT Payment due on or before January 15, 2025 corresponds to the 
Property Tax Year ending December 31, 2023). 

Section 4.03. Payment of Administration Expenses.  The Operating Company will 
reimburse, or cause reimbursement of, the County from time to time for the County’s 
Administration Expenses incurred in the fulfillment of its obligations hereunder, or in the 
implementation of this Agreement’s terms and provisions promptly upon written request therefor, 
but in no event later than forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the County 
specifying the nature of such expense and requesting the payment of the same.  The County 
acknowledges that it imposes no charges in the nature of impact fees or recurring fees in connection 
with the Project or the incentives authorized by this Agreement, and, aside from the attorneys’ fees 
set forth below, the County anticipates no out of pocket expenses in connection with this 
Agreement and the transactions authorized hereby.  The parties hereto understand that the County 
has incurred, and will incur, legal fees and other expenses for review of the Inducement Resolution, 
this Agreement, the Multi-County Park Agreement, and all resolutions, ordinances and other 
documentation related thereto in an amount not to exceed $5,000. 

Section 4.04. Use of Project for Lawful Activities.  During the Term, the Companies and 
each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate may use its respective portion of the Project as it deems 
fit for any lawful purpose. 

Section 4.05. Maintenance of Existence.  Except in the event the resulting, surviving or 
transferee entity is any Company or an Affiliate of any Company, as to which such consolidation, 
merger, or transfer, the County hereby preapproves and consents, unless the County shall provide 
prior consent or subsequent ratification otherwise, which consent or ratification shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed, each Company covenants that it will maintain its 
separate existence and will not dissolve or consolidate with, merge into or transfer, or otherwise 
dispose of substantially all of its property to any other entity or permit one or more other entities 
to consolidate with or merge into it or purchase substantially all of its property unless:   

(a) such Company shall be the continuing business entity, or the business entity 
formed by such consolidation or into which such Company is merged or the entity which 
acquires by conveyance or transfer all or substantially all of such Company’s assets shall 
(i) be an entity organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America or 
any state thereof or the District of Columbia and qualified to do business in the State; (ii) 
have a net worth equal to or greater than the net worth of such Company immediately 
preceding the date of such merger, consolidation or transfer; and (iii) expressly and 
unconditionally assume, by written agreement supplemental hereto and acceptable to the 
County as to form and content, in its reasonable discretion, every payment obligation of 
such Company herein and the performance of every covenant of this Agreement on the part 
of such Company to be performed or observed; and 



  

 17  

(b) immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Event of Default, and 
no event, which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, 
shall have happened and be continuing; and  

(c) such Company shall have delivered to the County (i) a certificate of a duly 
authorized officer of such Company, accompanied by financial statements of the surviving 
company (if other than such Company) showing compliance with the net worth 
requirements specified in paragraph (a) above and (ii) an opinion of counsel for such 
Company or counsel to the transferee company stating that such consolidation, merger, 
conveyance or transfer and such supplement to this Agreement comply with this Section 
and that all conditions precedent herein provided for relating to such transaction have been 
complied with. 

Upon any consolidation or merger or any conveyance or transfer of all or substantially all 
of any Company’s assets in accordance with this Section 4.05, the successor entity formed by such 
consolidation or into which such Company is merged or to which such conveyance or transfer is 
made, shall succeed to, and be substituted for, and may exercise every right and power of such 
Company under this Agreement with the same effect as if such successor entity had been named 
as a Company herein, and thereafter such Company shall be relieved of all obligations and 
covenants under this Agreement.   

 
If a consolidation, merger or conveyance or transfer is made as permitted by this Section, 

the provisions of this Section shall continue in full force and effect and no further consolidation, 
merger or conveyance or transfer shall be made except in compliance with the provisions of this 
Section 4.05. 
 

Each Company acknowledges transfers of this Agreement or the Negotiated FILOT 
Property may cause the Negotiated FILOT Property to become ineligible for a Negotiated FILOT 
or result in penalties under the Negotiated FILOT Act absent compliance by each Company with 
the Transfer Provisions. 

 
Section 4.06. Records and Reports.  Each Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor 

Affiliate will maintain, or cause to be maintained, such books and records with respect to its 
respective portion of the Project as will permit the identification of those portions of the Project it 
places in service during the Investment Period, the amount of investment with respect thereto, and 
any computations of Negotiated FILOT Payments made by such entity hereunder, and will comply 
with all reporting requirements of the State and the County applicable to Negotiated FILOT 
Property under the Negotiated FILOT Act, including without limitation the reports required by 
Section 12-44-90 of the Negotiated FILOT Act (collectively, “Filings”); provided, however, that 
the parties hereto hereby waive in its entirety the requirement under Section 12-44-55 of the 
Negotiated FILOT Act for a recapitulation of the terms of this Agreement.  In addition, the 
following records shall be provided to the County: 



  

 18  

(a) Upon direction of the governing body of the County, a County Official may 
request and obtain such financial books and records from any Company and any other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate that support the Negotiated FILOT returns of such Company 
or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate as may be reasonably necessary to verify the 
calculations of the Negotiated FILOT Payments by such Company or such other Sponsor 
or Sponsor Affiliate. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “County Official” shall 
include the Administrator, Auditor, Assessor, or Treasurer of the County. 

(b) Each year during the Term, each Company and each other Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate shall deliver to the County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County 
Treasurer of the County a copy of any form or return it files with the Department of 
Revenue with respect to its respective portion of the Project at the same time as delivery 
thereof to the Department of Revenue. 

(c) The Operating Company shall cause a copy of this Agreement, as well as a 
copy of the completed Form PT-443 required by the Department of Revenue, to be filed 
within thirty (30) days after the date of original execution and delivery hereof with the 
County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County Treasurer of the County, and of each 
other county which is a party to the Multi-County Park Agreement, and with the 
Department of Revenue and shall update such Form PT-443 from time to time to the extent 
that the information therein is no longer accurate. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, each Company and each other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate may, by clear, written designation, conspicuously marked, designate 
with respect to any Filings or other documents or information delivered to the County segments 
thereof that such Company or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate believes contains 
proprietary, confidential, or trade secret matters.  The County shall comply with all reasonable, 
written requests made by such Company or any such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate with 
respect to maintaining the confidentiality of such designated segments.  Except to the extent 
required by law, and unless the County has provided at least fifteen (15) days advance written 
notice to the Companies or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate of such proposed release, the 
County shall not knowingly and voluntarily release any Filing, documents, or other information 
provided to the County by any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate in connection 
with the Project, whether or not such information has been designated as confidential or proprietary 
by any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate. 

Section 4.07. Funding for Special Source Improvements. The Companies and each 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall provide, or cause the provision of, funding for the Special 
Source Improvements related to its respective portion of the Project. 

Section 4.08. Indemnification Covenants. 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Agreement or in any other 
agreements between any Company and the County, each Company shall agree to indemnify, 



  

 19  

defend, and save the County, its Council members, elected officials, officers, employees, 
servants and agents (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”), harmless against and from all 
claims brought against the Indemnified Parties by or on behalf of any third party person, firm 
or corporation arising from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done 
on its respective portion of the Project by such Company or any Sponsor Affiliate designated 
by such Company hereunder, their members, officers, shareholders, employees, servants, 
contractors, and agents during the Term (regardless of when such claim is asserted), and each 
Company further shall indemnify, defend, and save the Indemnified Parties harmless against 
and from all claims brought against the Indemnified Parties arising during the Term 
(regardless of when such claim is asserted) from (i) any condition of its respective portion of 
the Project, (ii) any breach or default on the part of such Company or any Sponsor Affiliate 
designated by such Company hereunder in the performance of any of its obligations under 
this Agreement, (iii) any act of negligence of such Company or any Sponsor Affiliate 
designated by such Company hereunder or its agents, contractors, servants, employees or 
licensees, (iv) except in such cases where the County has released such Company pursuant 
to Section 6.01 hereof, any act of negligence of any assignee or lessee of such Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate designated by such Company hereunder, or of any agents, contractors, 
servants, employees or licensees of any assignee or lessee of such Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate designated by such Company hereunder, or (v) any environmental violation, 
condition, or effect with respect to its respective portion of the Project.  Each Company shall 
indemnify and save the Indemnified Parties harmless from and against all reasonable costs 
and expenses incurred by the Indemnified Parties in connection with defending against any 
such claim arising as aforesaid or in connection with defending against any action or 
proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice from the Indemnified Parties, such Company 
shall defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding with legal counsel of such 
indemnifying Company’s choice, which is acceptable to the County, which acceptance shall 
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the 
Indemnified Parties shall not incur pecuniary liability during the Term by reason of the terms 
of this Agreement, or the undertakings required of the County hereunder, by reason of the 
granting of the Negotiated FILOT, by reason of the execution of this Agreement, by reason 
of the performance of any act requested of it by any Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or 
by reason of the operation of the Project by any Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
nevertheless, if the County, its agents, officers or employees should incur any such pecuniary 
liability during the Term of this Agreement, then in such event the Companies shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any third 
party person, firm or corporation, arising out of the same, and all reasonable costs and 
expenses incurred in connection with defending against any such claim or in connection with 
defending against any such action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon reasonable 
notice, the Companies shall defend them in any such action or proceeding with legal counsel 
of the Companies’ choice, which is acceptable to the County, which acceptance shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 



  

 20  

(c) The above-referenced indemnification covenants shall be considered 
included in and incorporated by reference in subsequent documents after the delivery of this 
Agreement which the County is requested to sign on behalf of any Company, if any, with 
respect to the Project, and any other indemnification covenants in any such subsequent 
documents shall not be construed to reduce or limit the above indemnification covenants. 

 
(d) No termination of this Agreement pursuant to any provision elsewhere in 

this Agreement shall relieve any Company of its duties and obligations to make the 
payments required by Section 4.03 hereof, all of which duties and obligations shall survive 
any such termination. 

Section 4.09. Operating Company Certification. On or before the April 30 immediately 
following the end of the Compliance Period, the Operating will provide, or cause to be provided, 
a written certification to the County, in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the County 
and the Operating Company, reflecting (i) the highest level of aggregate investment in the Project 
(without regard to depreciation or other diminution in value) within the Compliance Period and 
(ii) aggregate investment in Special Source Improvements (without regard to depreciation or other 
diminution in value) within the Compliance Period.  Thereafter, during the remaining term of the 
Special Source Credits set forth in Section 3.02 hereof, on or before each subsequent April 30, the 
Operating Company will provide, or cause to be provided, a written certification to the County, in 
form and substance reasonably acceptable to the County and the Operating Company, reflecting 
aggregate investment in Special Source Improvements (without regard to depreciation and other 
diminution in value) as of the immediately preceding December 31. 

ARTICLE V 
 

FEES IN LIEU OF TAXES 

Section 5.01. Payment of Fees in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes. 

(a) In accordance with the Negotiated FILOT Act, the parties hereto hereby 
agree, during the Term, that there shall be due annually with respect to that portion of the 
Project constituting Negotiated FILOT Property, whether owned by any Company or by 
any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, a Negotiated FILOT Payment calculated as set 
forth in this Section, at the places, in the manner and subject to the penalty assessments 
prescribed by the County or the Department of Revenue for ad valorem taxes.  It is 
presently anticipated, but not required, that the initial Negotiated FILOT Payment, which 
shall be due under current Code requirements on the January 15 following the year in which 
the County adds the initial Negotiated FILOT Property to its tax rolls, will be due on 
January 15, [20__]. If any Company designates any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliates as 
the same shall have been consented to by the County, if such consent is required pursuant 
to Section 6.02 hereof, such Company must notify the County in writing at the time of such 
designation as to whether such additional Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall be primarily 
liable for the Negotiated FILOT Payments due hereunder with respect to such Sponsor or 



  

 21  

Sponsor Affiliate’s respective portion of the Negotiated FILOT Property.  Unless and until 
such additional notification is received, the Companies shall be primarily liable for all 
Negotiated FILOT Payments due with respect to such Negotiated FILOT Property. 

(b) Subject to adjustment pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5.01, the 
Negotiated FILOT shall be calculated each year in accordance with the following 
provisions: 

(i) For each annual increment of investment in Negotiated FILOT 
Property, the annual Negotiated FILOT Payments shall initially be payable for 
a payment period of thirty (30) years.  Accordingly, if such Negotiated FILOT 
Property is placed in service during more than one year, each year’s 
investment during the Investment Period shall be subject to the Negotiated 
FILOT for a payment period of thirty (30) years, up to an aggregate of thirty-
five (35) years or, if the Investment Period is extended as set forth in Section 
4.01(c) hereof, up to an aggregate of forty (40) years. 

(ii) The Negotiated FILOT shall be determined using: (1) an 
assessment ratio of 6%; (2) a millage rate of 332.07 mills, which millage rate 
shall be fixed pursuant to Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(b)(i) of the Negotiated 
FILOT Act for the full term of the Negotiated FILOT; and (3) the fair market 
value of such Negotiated FILOT Property as determined in accordance with 
Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(c) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, which, (A) for real 
property, shall be the fair market value of such property for ad valorem tax 
purposes, determined by appraisal not more than once every five (5) years, 
and (B) for personal property, shall be the original income tax basis for any 
personal property less allowable depreciation (except depreciation due to 
extraordinary obsolescence); provided, however, that any Company or any 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate and the County may agree at a later date to 
amend this Agreement as to Negotiated FILOT Property owned by such 
Company or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate so as to determine the 
fair market value of any such real property in accordance with any other 
method permitted by the Negotiated FILOT Act; provided, however, any such 
amendment shall require the prior written consent of the Operating Company. 

(iii) All such calculations shall take into account all deductions for 
depreciation or other diminution in value allowed by the Code or by the tax 
laws generally, as well as tax exemptions which would have been applicable 
if such property were subject to ad valorem taxes, except the five-year 
exemption from County taxes allowed for certain manufacturing, distribution, 
corporate headquarters and research and development facilities pursuant to 
Section 3(g) of Article X of the Constitution of the State and Sections 12-37-
220(B)(32) and (34) of the Code; provided, however, the Companies or any 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall not be entitled to extraordinary 



  

 22  

obsolescence with respect to Negotiated FILOT Property as set forth in 
Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(c)(ii) of the Negotiated FILOT Act. 

(iv) For purposes of calculating the Negotiated FILOT, the 
Negotiated FILOT Property shall not include any Released Property or Non-
Qualifying Property. 

(c) The Negotiated FILOT Payments are to be recalculated: 

(i) to reduce such payments in the event any Company or any other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate disposes of any part of the Negotiated FILOT 
Property within the meaning of Section 12-44-50(B) of the Negotiated FILOT 
Act and as provided in Section 4.01(e)(ii) hereof, by the amount applicable to 
the Released Property;  

(ii) to reduce such payments in the event that the Negotiated 
FILOT Property or any portion thereof is damaged or destroyed, lost or stolen, 
or the subject of condemnation proceedings or otherwise removed from the 
Project as a result of circumstances beyond the control of any Company or any 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate; 

(iii) to increase such payments in the event any Company or any 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate adds any Negotiated FILOT Property 
(other than Replacement Property) to its respective portion of the Project; or 

(iv) to adjust such payments if any Company or any other Sponsor 
or Sponsor Affiliate elects to convert any portion of the Negotiated FILOT 
Property from the Negotiated FILOT to ad valorem taxes, or to FILOT 
payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, as 
permitted by Section 4.01(e)(iii). 

(d) Upon installation or placing in service of any Replacement Property for any 
Released Property, such Replacement Property shall become subject to Negotiated FILOT 
Payments to the fullest extent allowed by the Negotiated FILOT Act, subject to the 
following rules: 

(i) Such Replacement Property does not have to serve the same 
function as the Released Property it is replacing.  Replacement Property is 
deemed to replace the oldest property subject to the Negotiated FILOT, 
whether real or personal, which is disposed of in the same Property Tax Year 
as the Replacement Property is placed in service.  Replacement Property 
qualifies for Negotiated FILOT Payments up to the original income tax basis 
of the Released Property which it is replacing in the same Property Tax Year.  
More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of property.  To the 
extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property exceeds the 



  

 23  

original income tax basis of the Released Property which it is replacing, the 
excess amount is subject to payments equal to the ad valorem taxes, or FILOT 
payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, which 
would have been paid on such property but for this Agreement.  Replacement 
Property is entitled to the Negotiated FILOT Payments for the remaining 
portion of the Negotiated FILOT Payment period set forth in Section 
5.01(b)(i) hereof applicable to the Released Property. 

(ii) Each Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall 
maintain, or cause to be maintained, records sufficient to identify all 
Replacement Property it places in service, and the Negotiated FILOT 
Payments with respect thereto shall be calculated using the millage rate and 
assessment ratio provided on the property it is replacing. 

(e) In the event that, for any reason, the Negotiated FILOT Act and/or the 
Negotiated FILOT or any portion thereof is, by a court of competent jurisdiction following 
allowable appeals, declared invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, or the portion of 
the Project consisting of Negotiated FILOT Property is deemed not to be eligible for a 
Negotiated FILOT pursuant to the Negotiated FILOT Act in whole or in part, the 
Companies and the County express their intentions that such payments be reformed so as 
to afford each Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate benefits 
commensurate with those intended under this Agreement as then permitted by law, 
including without limitation any benefits afforded under Title 4, Chapter 12 and Title 4, 
Chapter 29 of the Code, as applicable, to the extent allowed by law.  Absent the legal 
authorization to effect such reformation, the Companies and the County agree that there 
shall be due hereunder with respect to the portion of the Negotiated FILOT Property 
affected by such circumstances ad valorem taxes, or FILOT payments pursuant to the 
Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, and that, to the extent permitted by law, each 
Company and any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall be entitled: (1) to enjoy the five-
year exemption from ad valorem taxes, or from FILOT payments pursuant to the Multi-
County Park Act, as the case may be, provided by Article X, Section 3 of the Constitution 
of the State, and any other exemption allowed by law; (2) to enjoy all allowable 
depreciation; and (3) to receive all other tax credits which would be due if such Company 
and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate were obligated to pay ad valorem taxes or 
make FILOT payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, 
hereunder. To the extent that under such circumstances the Negotiated FILOT Payments 
hereunder are subject to retroactive adjustment, then there shall be due and payable from 
each Company and any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, with respect 
to such entity’s portion of the Negotiated FILOT Property in question, an amount equal to 
the difference between the Negotiated FILOT Payments theretofore actually paid and the 
amount which would have been paid as ad valorem taxes, or as FILOT payments pursuant 
to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, together with interest on such deficiency 
as provided in Section 12-54-25(D) of the Code (a “Deficiency Payment”). 



  

 24  

(f)  

(i) In the event that the Minimum Statutory Investment 
Requirement is not satisfied by the end of the Compliance Period, then all 
Negotiated FILOT Payments shall revert retroactively to ad valorem taxes, or 
FILOT payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, 
calculated as set forth in paragraph (e) above, and a Deficiency Payment from 
each such owing entity shall be due and payable with respect to Negotiated 
FILOT Payments theretofore made.  In the event that the aggregate investment 
in the Project by all Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates does not exceed 
$5,000,000 by the end of the Compliance Period and any Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliate does not satisfy the Minimum Statutory Investment Requirement 
solely through its own direct investment in the Project, then the Negotiated 
FILOT Payments with respect to that portion of the Project owned by such 
non-qualifying Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall revert retroactively to ad 
valorem taxes, or FILOT payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as 
the case may be, calculated as set forth in paragraph (e) above, and such 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall owe a Deficiency Payment with respect to 
Negotiated FILOT Payments theretofore made as to such portion of the 
Project.  To the extent necessary to collect a Deficiency Payment under this 
clause (i) due to failure to satisfy the Minimum Statutory Investment 
Requirement, Section 12-44-140(D) of the Negotiated FILOT Act provides 
that any statute of limitations that might apply pursuant to Section 12-54-85 
of the Code is suspended. 

(ii) In the event that either or both of the Minimum Contractual 
Investment Requirement and the Minimum Jobs Requirement are not satisfied 
by the end of the Compliance Period, but the Minimum Statutory Investment 
Requirement has nevertheless been satisfied by the end of the Compliance 
Period, each Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall 
continue to be eligible to take advantage of the Negotiated FILOT described 
in Section 5.01 hereof, but the County shall have the rights specified in 
Section 4.02 hereof with respect to the Special Source Credits. 

(iii) In the event that the Minimum Statutory Investment 
Requirement is satisfied by the end of the Compliance Period, but following 
the Compliance Period, investment in the Project, without regard to 
depreciation or other diminution in value, falls below the investment level set 
forth in the Minimum Statutory Investment Requirement, then the Project 
shall prospectively be subject to ad valorem taxes, or FILOT payments 
pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, calculated as set 
forth in paragraph (e) above, in accordance with Section 12-44-140(C) of the 
Negotiated FILOT Act, commencing with any Negotiated FILOT Payments 



  

 25  

due with respect to Project property placed in service as of the end of the 
Property Tax Year in which such deficiency occurs. 

(iv) In accordance with the provisions of Sections 4.01(b) and 6.02 
hereof, except for Existing Property, the investment in all property utilized by 
any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate at the Land, whether 
owned by any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate outright or 
utilized by any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate pursuant 
to any financing agreement or any lease or other arrangement with any 
Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, and whether or not 
subject to this Agreement, shall be counted toward all investment obligations 
under this Agreement, including, to the extent permitted by law, investment 
obligations under the Negotiated FILOT Act.   

(g) Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement or as otherwise required by 
the Negotiated FILOT Act, any amounts due to the County under this Section 5.01 as a 
Deficiency Payment or other retroactive payment shall be paid within one hundred eighty 
(180) days following receipt by any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate 
of notice from the County that such a Deficiency Payment or other retroactive payment is 
due from such entity.   

Section 5.02. Statutory Lien.  The parties hereto acknowledge the County’s right to 
receive Negotiated FILOT Payments hereunder and that the County is entitled to and shall have a 
statutory lien with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 12-44-90(E) of the Negotiated FILOT 
Act and Title 12, Chapter 54 of the Code relating to the collection and enforcement of ad valorem 
property taxes. 

ARTICLE VI 
 

THIRD PARTY ARRANGEMENTS  

Section 6.01. Conveyance of Liens and Interests; Assignment.  The County agrees that 
each Company and each other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate may at any time: (a) transfer all or any 
of its rights and interests hereunder or with respect to all or any part of its respective portion of the 
Project to any Person; or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar 
arrangement or succession of such arrangements with any financing entity or other Person with 
respect to this Agreement or all or any part of its respective portion of the Project, including 
without limitation any sale-leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, synthetic lease, nordic 
lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar arrangement or 
succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of such portion 
of the Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement leases the portion of the Project in 
question to such Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or operates such assets for 
such Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or is leasing all or a portion of the Project 
in question from such Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate.  In the event of any 
such transfer, lease, financing, or other transaction described above, the rights and interests of such 



  

 26  

Company or such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate under this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, the benefits of the Negotiated FILOT, the Special Source Credits, and the Multi-County 
Park, with respect to any Project property so transferred, leased, financed, or otherwise affected 
shall be so transferred and preserved, automatically, without further action of the County or the 
Council, subject to the following provisions: (i) except in connection with any transfer to any other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate or an Affiliate of such Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliate, or transfers, leases, or financing arrangements pursuant to clause (b) above, as to all of 
which transfers and other transactions the County hereby preapproves and consents, such 
Company shall obtain the prior consent or subsequent ratification of the County, which consent or 
subsequent ratification of the County shall not be unreasonably conditioned, withheld, or delayed; 
(ii) except when a financing entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of the Project 
property is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) above and such financing entity assumes in writing 
the obligations of such Company or any such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate hereunder, or 
when the County consents in writing or when the transfer relates to Released Property pursuant to 
Section 4.01(e) hereof, no such transfer shall affect or reduce any of the obligations of such 
Company or any such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate hereunder; (iii) to the extent the 
transferee or financing entity shall become obligated to make Negotiated FILOT payments 
hereunder, the transferee shall assume the then current basis of such Company or any such other 
Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate (or prior transferee) in the Negotiated FILOT Property transferred; 
(iv) such Company or any such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, transferee or financing entity 
shall, within sixty (60) days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the 
Department of Revenue notice of any such transfer agreement; and (v) such Company or any such 
other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate and the transferee shall comply with all other requirements of 
the Transfer Provisions in order to preserve the benefits of the Negotiated FILOT.   

Subject to County consent when required under this Section 6.01, and at the expense 
of such Company or any such other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, the County agrees to take such 
further action and execute such further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be 
reasonably required to effectuate the assumption by any such transferee of all or part of the rights 
of such Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate under this Agreement and/or any 
release of such Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this Section 6.01.   

The County acknowledges that, notwithstanding any of the terms of this Section 6.01 
or this Agreement, the County has no right of consent or subsequent ratification to a change in the 
direct or indirect ownership of any Company. 

Each Company acknowledges that any transfer of an interest under this Agreement or 
in the Negotiated FILOT Property may cause all or part of the Negotiated FILOT Property to 
become ineligible for a Negotiated FILOT or result in penalties under the Negotiated FILOT Act 
absent compliance by any Company or any such Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate with the Transfer 
Provisions.   

Section 6.02. Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates.  Any Company may designate from time 
to time other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions of Sections 12-44-30(19) 



  

 27  

or (20), respectively, and Section 12-44-130 of the Negotiated FILOT Act, which Sponsors or 
Sponsor Affiliates shall be Persons who join with the Companies and make investments with 
respect to the Project, or who participate in the financing of such investments, who agree to be 
bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement and who shall be Affiliates of any Company 
or other Persons described in Section 6.01(b) hereof; provided, however, any such designation by 
the Real Property Owner shall require the prior written consent of the Operating Company.  All 
other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates who otherwise meet the requirements of Section 12-44-30 
(19) or (20) and Section 12-44-130 of the Negotiated FILOT Act must be approved by resolution 
of the Council.  To the extent that a Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate invests an amount equal to the 
Minimum Statutory Investment Requirement at the Project by the end of the Compliance Period 
all investment by such Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall qualify for the Negotiated FILOT 
payable under Section 5.01 hereof (subject to the other conditions set forth therein) in accordance 
with Section 12-44-30(19) of the Negotiated FILOT Act.  To the extent that the aggregate 
investment in the Project by the end of the Compliance Period by the Companies, all Sponsors and 
Sponsor Affiliates and, to the extent provided by law, other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliates, exceeds 
$5,000,000 as provided in Section 12-44-30(19) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, all investment by 
such Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period shall qualify for the Negotiated 
FILOT pursuant to Section 5.01 of this Agreement (subject to the other conditions set forth therein) 
regardless of whether each such entity invested amounts equal to the Minimum Statutory 
Investment Requirement by the end of the Compliance Period.  The Companies shall provide the 
County and the Department of Revenue with written notice of any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate 
designated pursuant to this Section 6.02 within ninety (90) days after the end of the calendar year 
during which any such Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate has placed in service Negotiated FILOT 
Property to be used in connection with the Project, all in accordance with Section 12-44-130(B) 
of the Negotiated FILOT Act. 

ARTICLE VII 
 

TERM; TERMINATION 

Section 7.01. Term.  Unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms and provisions herein 
contained, this Agreement shall be and remain in full force and effect for a term commencing on 
the date on which the Companies execute this Agreement and ending at midnight on the later of 
(i) the day the last Negotiated FILOT Payment is made hereunder, or (ii) the day that all Special 
Source Credits due from the County hereunder have been fully provided by the County. 

Section 7.02. Termination.  In addition to the termination rights of the County under 
Section 8.02(a) hereof, the County and the Companies may jointly agree to terminate this 
Agreement at any time, or each of the Operating Company, and (with the prior written consent of 
the Operating Company) the Real Property Owner, may, at its option, unilaterally terminate this 
Agreement at any time, with respect to all, or any portion, of its respective portion of the Project 
in which event the Project, or such portion of the Project, shall be subject to ad valorem taxes, or 
to FILOT payments pursuant to the Multi-County Park Act, as the case may be, from the date of 
termination.  Notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement, the County shall have the same 



  

 28  

rights to receive payment for any retroactive ad valorem taxes, Deficiency Payments, interest or 
penalties, and the same enforcement rights with respect to such obligations as it would have with 
respect to ad valorem taxes, and the County’s rights arising under Section 5.01 prior to the time 
of such termination shall survive any such termination. 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 8.01. Events of Default.  Any one or more of the following events (herein called 
an “Event of Default”, or collectively “Events of Default”) shall constitute an Event of Default by 
any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate (the “Defaulting Entity”) but only with 
respect to such Defaulting Entity’s rights, duties, and obligations contained herein: 

(a) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any Negotiated 
FILOT Payments, which default shall not have been cured within sixty (60) days following 
receipt of written notice of such default from the County; or 

(b) if default shall be made in the due performance of or compliance with any 
of the terms hereof, other than those referred to in the foregoing paragraph (a), and such 
default shall continue for ninety (90) days after the County shall have given the Defaulting 
Entity written notice of such default; provided, the County may, in its discretion, grant the 
Defaulting Entity a longer period of time as necessary to cure such default if the Defaulting 
Entity proceeds with due diligence to cure such default; provided however, that no Event 
of Default shall exist under this Agreement during any period when there is pending, before 
any judicial or administrative tribunal having jurisdiction, any proceeding in which the 
Defaulting Entity has contested the occurrence of such default. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, failure to meet any investment or job creation 
requirements, thresholds, or levels set forth in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be an Event 
of Default under this Agreement, but may terminate certain benefits hereunder or obligate a 
Company or other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliates, as the case may be, to make certain additional 
payments to the County, all as set forth in Sections 4.02 and 5.01(f) hereof. 
 

Section 8.02. Remedies on Event of Default.  Upon the occurrence of any Event of 
Default, the following remedies may be exercised by the County only as to the Defaulting Entity: 

(a) the County may terminate this Agreement by delivery of written notice to 
the Defaulting Entity not less than sixty (60) days prior to the termination date specified 
therein; or 

(b) the County may have access to and inspect, examine, and make copies of 
the books and records of the Defaulting Entity pertaining to the construction, acquisition, 
or maintenance of the Project or calculation of the Negotiated FILOT as provided in 
Section 4.06 hereof; or 



  

 29  

(c) the County may take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear 
necessary or desirable to collect the amount then due or enforce the County’s rights 
hereunder, it being the express intent of the parties hereto that the County, without 
limitation, shall have the same remedies available by law to collect Negotiated FILOT 
Payments as if they were delinquent ad valorem tax payments, including execution upon 
the lien referred to in Section 5.02 hereof. 

Section 8.03. Defaulted Payments.  In the event any Company or any other Sponsor or 
Sponsor Affiliate should fail to make any of the payments required to be made by such entity under 
this Agreement, the item or installment so in default shall continue as an obligation of such entity 
until the amount in default shall have been fully paid.  If any such default relates to its obligations 
to make Negotiated FILOT Payments hereunder, such entity shall pay the same with interest 
thereon at the rate per annum provided by the Code for late payment of ad valorem taxes together 
with any penalties provided by the Code for late payment of ad valorem taxes, all as provided in 
Section 12-44-90 of the Negotiated FILOT Act. 

Section 8.04. Default by County.  Upon the default of the County in the performance of 
any of its obligations hereunder, any Company and any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate may 
take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary or desirable to enforce its rights 
under this Agreement, including without limitation a suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

ARTICLE IX 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 9.01. Rights and Remedies Cumulative.  Each right, power, and remedy of the 
County or of any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate provided for in this 
Agreement shall be cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to every other right, power, 
or remedy provided for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity, in any 
jurisdiction where such rights, powers, and remedies are sought to be enforced; and the exercise 
by the County or by any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate of any one or more 
of the rights, powers, or remedies provided for in this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at 
law or in equity or by statute or otherwise shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by 
the County or by any Company or any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate of any or all such other 
rights, powers, or remedies. 

Section 9.02. Successors and Assigns.  The terms and provisions of this Agreement shall 
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, any Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate, 
and their respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder; provided, however, that 
notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the County may not assign any or all of its rights, 
duties, and obligations in, to, and under this Agreement without the written consent of the 
Companies, which consent may be provided by the Companies in their sole discretion. 

Section 9.03. Notices; Demands; Requests.  All notices, demands, and requests to be 
given or made hereunder to or by the County or any Company shall be in writing and shall be 



  

 30  

deemed to be properly given or made if sent by United States first class mail, postage prepaid, or 
reputable courier service, to the following persons and addresses or to such other persons and 
places as may be designated in writing by such party. 

 (a)  As to the County: 

Anderson County 
Attn: County Administrator 
PO Box 8002 
Anderson, South Carolina 29622 
 

 (b)  with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to: 

Anderson County 
Attn: County Attorney 
PO Box 8002 
Anderson, South Carolina 29622 
 

(c)  As to the Operating Company: 
 
Project Highway 81 Logistics Operating Company 
Attn: [_________________] 
[______________________] 
[______________________] 
 

(d)  with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to: 
 
Nexsen Pruet, LLC 
Attn: Tushar V. Chikhliker 
1230 Main Street, Suite 700  
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 
 

(e)  As to the Real Property Owner: 
 
Project Highway 81 Logistics Real Property Owner 
Attn: [_________________] 
[______________________] 
[______________________] 
 

(f)  with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to: 
 
Nexsen Pruet, LLC 
Attn: Tushar V. Chikhliker 
1230 Main Street, Suite 700  



  

 31  

Columbia, South Carolina 29201 
 

Section 9.04. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State.  To the extent of any conflict between the provisions of this 
Agreement and the Act, the Act controls. 

Section 9.05. Entire Understanding.  This Agreement expresses the entire understanding 
and all agreements of the parties hereto with each other and supersedes all prior and 
contemporaneous discussions of the parties hereto, whether oral or written, and neither party hereto 
has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any warranty or representation to the other party 
which is not expressly set forth in this Agreement or in certificates delivered in connection with 
the execution and delivery hereof.  Unless as otherwise expressly set forth herein, this Agreement 
will not confer any rights or remedies upon any Person other than the parties hereto and their 
respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder. 

Section 9.06. Severability.  In the event that any clause or provision of this Agreement 
shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of such clause or 
provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof. 

Section 9.07. Headings and Table of Contents; References.  The headings of this 
Agreement and any Table of Contents annexed hereto are for convenience of reference only and 
shall not define or limit the provisions hereof or affect the meaning or interpretation hereof.  All 
references in this Agreement to particular Articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement are 
references to the designated Articles or Sections or paragraphs of this Agreement. 

Section 9.08. Multiple Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

Section 9.09. Amendments.  Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 12-44-40(K)(2) 
of the Negotiated FILOT Act, this Agreement may be amended, or the rights and interest of the 
parties hereto hereunder surrendered, only by a writing signed by both parties hereto. 

Section 9.10. Waiver.  Either party hereto may waive compliance by the other party hereto 
with any term or condition of this Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 9.11. Further Proceedings.  The parties hereto intend any action to be taken 
hereinafter by the County pursuant to the express provisions of this Agreement may be undertaken 
by the Chairman of the Council without necessity of further proceedings.  To the extent additional 
proceedings are required by law, however, the County agrees to undertake all such steps as may 
be reasonably required or appropriate to effectuate the intent of this Agreement. 

Section 9.12. Disparity or Ambiguity with Inducement Resolution. In the event of any 
disparity or ambiguity between the terms and provisions of the Inducement Resolution and the 
terms and provisions of this Agreement, the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall control. 



  

 32  

 

 

[Execution Pages to Follow] 



 

   

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, each after due authorization, have executed 
this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement to be effective as of the date first written above. 

 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA  

By: _________________________________________ 
Tommy Dunn, Chairman of County Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 

[SEAL] 
 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________________ 
Renee D. Watts, Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________________ 
Leon Harmon, County Attorney 
Anderson County, South Carolina 



 

   

PROJECT HIGHWAY 81 LOGISTICS OPERATING 
COMPANY 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Name: _____________________________ 
Its: ________________________________ 

 
 



 

   

PROJECT HIGHWAY 81 LOGISTICS REAL 
PROPERTY OWNER 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Name: _____________________________ 
Its: ________________________________ 



 

 A-1  

EXHIBIT A 
 

LAND DESCRIPTION 
 

[To be inserted] 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-016 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED 
AT 1299 THREE AND TWENTY ROAD, EASLEY, SOUTH CAROLINA (TMS NO. 163-
00-09-008) TO THE THREE AND TWENTY FIRE DEPARTMENT TRUSTEES; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO; 
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County currently owns a tract of real property (the “Property”) 

located at 1299 Three and Twenty Road, Easley, South Carolina and further identified by Tax Map 

Number 163-00-09-008; 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County acquired the Property by Deed from the Trustees for the 

Three and Twenty Grange Number 483 dated October 13, 1975 and recorded in the Register of 

Deeds office in Book 18-B at page 202; 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County previously used the Property as a solid waste convenience 

center and ceased using the property on or about June 25, 2015 when the Slabtown convenience 

center was opened. 

 WHEREAS, the Three and Twenty Fire Department is located adjacent to the Property 

and desires to own the Property and utilize it as a training site; 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina, acting by and through its County Council, 

is authorized under Title 4 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, as amended, to lease, sell, or 

otherwise dispose of real and personal property. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting 

duly assembled that: 

  1. The Anderson County Council hereby approves the transfer of the real 

property located at 1299 Three and Twenty Road, Easley, South Carolina, TMS No.: 163-00-09-

008 to the Three and Twenty Fire Department for use as a training site.  The Chairman of County 

Council and the County Administrator are hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to execute, 



acknowledge, and deliver all documents in the name of and on behalf of the County to carry out 

the transaction contemplated by this Ordinance, including without limitation deeds, affidavits, 

settlement statements, and other such documents necessary and appropriate to the transfer of the 

property. 

 2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 

remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 

rescinded. 

 5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 

Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

 
ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 

Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
 
 

1st  Reading:__________________ 

2
nd

Reading:___________________ 

3
rd Reading:  _________________ 

 
Public Hearing: ________________ 
 

 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-017 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 204 WEST POPLAR STREET, IVA, SOUTH CAROLINA 
(TMS NO. 133-04-01-003); 57 OAK STREET, IVA, SOUTH CAROLINA (TMS 133-02-06-
003); AND 717 CENTRAL STREET, IVA, SOUTH CAROLINA (TMS 134-00-06-017) TO 
THE TOWN OF IVA; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO; 
 
 WHEREAS, beginning in 2015, Anderson County participated in the Neighborhood 
Initiative Program (“NIP”), a federally funded program managed in South Carolina by the South 
Carolina Housing and Development Authority;  
 
 WHEREAS, the NIP process required the involvement of a non-profit corporation and the 
County partnered with the Pelzer Heritage Commission to acquire properties which met the 
requirements of the NIP; 
 
 WHEREAS, the properties were acquired and titled in the Pelzer Heritage Commission 
with a lease back to the County for clean-up and maintenance of the properties; 
 
 WHEREAS, there are three (3) NIP properties located within the Town of Iva at 204 West 
Poplar Street (TMS 133-04-01-003), 57 Oak Street (TMS 133-02-06-003), and 717 Central Street 
(TMS 134-00-06-017); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Iva desires to acquire these properties for residential use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County desires to cancel its lease of those properties and agrees 
and requests that the properties to be deeded by the Pelzer Heritage Commission to the Town of 
Iva. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. Anderson County agrees to cancellation of its lease of properties located at 204 
West Poplar Street (TMS 133-04-01-003), 57 Oak Street (TMS 133-02-06-003), and 717 Central 
Street (TMS 134-00-06-017) and further agrees and requests that these properties be deeded by 
the Pelzer Heritage Commission to the Town of Iva.  The County Administrator is hereby 
authorized to execute any and all documents necessary to accomplish the transfer of these 
properties to the Town of Iva. 
 
 2. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the rest 
and remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 



 
 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the third reading and 
enactment of by Anderson County Council. 
 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ________ day of _________, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________   
Rusty Burns        Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts    
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
 
First Reading:  May 3, 2022 
 
Second Reading: ________________ 
 
Third Reading: __________________ 
 
Public Hearing: __________________ 
 
 
 
 
    



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-018 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE APPROVAL FOR ANDERSON COUNTY TO GRANT 
A PERPETUAL AND NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT UNTO DUKE ENERGY 
CAROLINAS, LLC UPON A PORTION OF THE REAL PROPERTY BEING PARCEL A, 
0.192 ACRES AND PARCEL B, 2.96 ACRES, AS RECORDED IN PLAT SLIDE 1273, 
PAGES 5 AND 6, ANDERSON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS FOR ELECTRIC CAR 
CHARGING STATIONS WITHIN THE CITY OF BELTON AND OTHER MATTERS 
RELATED THERETO;  
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 
County Council (the “County Council”) is authorized under Title 4 of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, as amended, to lease, sell or otherwise dispose of real property owned by the County; 
 
 WHEREAS, the County proposes to grant to Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC (“Duke 
Energy”) an easement over a portion its property with TMS No.: 221-01-08-004 located within 
the City of Belton for location of an electric vehicle charging station; and 
 
 WHEREAS, location of an electric vehicle charging station within the County is a 
desirable feature for the citizens of Anderson County. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. The Anderson County Council hereby approves the Easement across a portion of 
Tax Parcel 225-01-08-004, as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto, for purposes of development 
of an electric vehicle charging station. The County Administrator is hereby authorized, 
empowered, and directed to execute, acknowledge, and deliver all documents in the name of and 
on behalf of the County to carry out the transaction authorized by this Ordinance. 
 
 2. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the rest 
and remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the third reading and 
enactment of by Anderson County Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ________ day of _________, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________   
Rusty Burns        Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts    
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
 
First Reading: __________________ 
 
Second Reading: ________________ 
 
Third Reading: __________________ 
 
Public Hearing: __________________ 
 



For Grantee’s Internal Use: 

Work Order #: 41523077  1 

Prepared by: Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 
Return to: Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 

Attn: Will Johnson 
474 Charlie Watts Rd. 

Parcel # 225-01-08-004 

Maxton, NC 28364 

EASEMENT 

State of South Carolina 

County of Anderson 

THIS EASEMENT (“Easement”) is made this ____ day of _____________ 20____, from  

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a body corporate and politic organized under the laws 

of the State of South Carolina (“Grantor”, whether one or more), to DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS, 

LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company  (“Grantee”). 

Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of One and 00/100 Dollar ($1.00) and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant 

unto Grantee a perpetual and non-exclusive easement, to construct, reconstruct, operate, patrol, maintain, 

repair, replace, relocate, add to, modify, and remove electric and communication lines including, but not 

limited to, all necessary supporting structures, and all other appurtenant apparatus and equipment for the 

transmission and distribution of electrical energy, and for technological purposes related to the operation 

of the electric facilities and for the communication purposes of Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers 

(collectively, “Facilities”). Grantor is the owner of that certain property described in that instrument 

recorded in Deed Book 4593, Page 155, also shown as Parcel A containing .192 acres, more or less, and 

Parcel B2 containing 2.096 acres, more or less, as recorded in Plat Slide 1273, Page 5&6, Anderson 

County Register of Deeds (“Property”). The Facilities may be both overhead and underground and 

located in, upon, over, along, under, through, and across a portion of the Property within an easement area 

described as follows: A strip of land thirty feet (30’) in uniform width for the overhead portion of said 

Facilities and a strip of land twenty feet (20’) in uniform width for the underground portion of said 

Facilities, lying equidistant on both sides of a centerline, which centerline shall be established by the 

center of the Facilities as installed, along with an area ten feet (10’) wide on all sides of the foundation of 

any Grantee enclosure/transformer, vault and/or manhole, (hereinafter referred to as the “Easement 

Area”). 

The rights granted herein include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Grantee shall have the right of ingress and egress over the Easement Area, Property, and any

adjoining lands now owned or hereinafter acquired by Grantor (using lanes, driveways, and

adjoining public roads where practical as determined by Grantee).

Exhibit A



For Grantee’s Internal Use:  

Work Order #: 41523077  2  

2. Grantee shall have the right to trim, cut down, and remove from the Easement Area, at any time 

or times and using safe and generally accepted arboricultural practices, trees, limbs, undergrowth, 

other vegetation, and obstructions. 

3. Grantee shall have the right to trim, cut down, and remove from the Property, at any time or times 

and using safe and generally accepted arboricultural practices, dead, diseased, weak, dying, or 

leaning trees or limbs, which, in the opinion of Grantee, might fall upon the Easement Area or 

interfere with the safe and reliable operation of the Facilities. 

4. Grantee shall have the right to install necessary guy wires and anchors extending beyond the 

boundaries of the Easement Area.  

5. Grantee shall have the right to relocate the Facilities and Easement Area on the Property to 

conform to any future highway or street relocation, widening, or alterations. 

6. Grantor shall not place, or permit the placement of, any structures, improvements, facilities, or 

obstructions, within or adjacent to the Easement Area, which may interfere with the exercise of 

the rights granted herein to Grantee. Grantee shall have the right to remove any such structure, 

improvement, facility, or obstruction at the expense of Grantor. 

7. Excluding the removal of vegetation, structures, improvements, facilities, and obstructions as 

provided herein, Grantee shall promptly repair or cause to be repaired any physical damage to the 

surface area of the Easement Area and Property resulting from the exercise of the rights granted 

herein to Grantee. Such repair shall be to a condition which is reasonably close to the condition 

prior to the damage, and shall only be to the extent such damage was caused by Grantee or its 

contractors or employees. 

8. The rights granted in this Easement include the right to install Facilities wherever needed on the 

Property to serve future development on the Property and neighboring lands.  Portions of the 

Facilities may be installed immediately and other portions may be installed in the future as the 

need develops.  Facilities installed in the future shall be installed at locations mutually agreeable 

to the parties hereto if they are to be located outside of the Easement Area.  Upon any future 

installations of Facilities at mutually agreed locations, the Easement Area shall be deemed to 

include such future locations at the widths defined in this Easement. 

9. All other rights and privileges reasonably necessary, in Grantee’s sole discretion, for the safe, 

reliable, and efficient installation, operation, and maintenance of the Facilities. 

 

The terms Grantor and Grantee shall include the respective heirs, successors, and assigns of 

Grantor and Grantee. The failure of Grantee to exercise or continue to exercise or enforce any of the 

rights herein granted shall not be construed as a waiver or abandonment of the right thereafter at any time, 

or from time to time, to exercise any and all such rights. 

 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said rights, privilege, and easement unto Grantee, its successors, 

licensees, and assigns, forever. Grantor warrants and covenants that Grantor has the full right and 

authority to convey to Grantee this perpetual Easement, and that Grantee shall have quiet and peaceful 

possession, use and enjoyment of the same. 



For Grantee’s Internal Use:  

Work Order #: 41523077  3  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has signed this Easement under seal effective this ____ day 

of ___________________, 20_____. 

 

  ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Witnesses: a South Carolina a body corporate and politic 

organized under the laws of the State of 

 

  _____________________________________ (SEAL) 

(Witness #1)  Rusty Burns, Administrator 

 

  
(Witness #2) 

 

 

Attest: 

 

____________________________________ 

______________________, ________________ 

 

 

STATE OF __________________________ 

 

COUNTY OF ________________________ 

 

 

I, ________________________________, a Notary Public of ____________________ County, State of 

__________________________, certify that Rusty Burns, personally appeared before me this day and 

acknowledged that he is the Administrator of ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a body 

corporate and politic organized under the laws of the State of South Carolina, and that by authority duly 

given and as the act of said a body corporate and politic organized under the laws of the State of South 

Carolina, the foregoing EASEMENT was signed in its name by its Administrator, sealed with its official 

seal, and attested by herself/himself as its ___________________. 

 

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this ____ day of ______________________, 20_____. 

 

 Notary Public: _________________________ 

 Commission expires: ____________________ 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY COUNCIL FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 

 
ORDINANCE NO 2022-019 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT THE OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS OF 
ANDERSON COUNTY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2022, 
AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2023, AND TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS FOR SUCH 
ANDERSON COUNTY BUDGETS FOR COUNTY ORDINARY PURPOSES 
AND FOR OTHER COUNTY PURPOSES FOR WHICH THE COUNTY MAY 
LEVY A TAX OTHER THAN FOR TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
PURPOSES; TO PROVIDE FOR THE LEVY OF TAXES ON ALL TAXABLE 
PERSONAL AND REAL ESTATE PROPERTIES IN ANDERSON COUNTY FOR 
SUCH COUNTY ORDINARY PURPOSES, INCLUDING SUFFICIENT TAX TO 
PAY THE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON OUTSTANDING INDEBTEDNESS 
OF ANDERSON COUNTY MATURING DURING SAID FISCAL YEAR; TO 
ADOPT THE OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS OF ANDERSON 
COUNTY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2022, AND ENDING 
JUNE 30, 2023, AND TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS FOR SUCH ANDERSON 
COUNTY BUDGETS, FOR TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE; TO 
PROVIDE FOR THE LEVY OF TAXES ON ALL PERSONAL AND REAL 
PROPERTIES IN ANDERSON COUNTY ON WHICH SCHOOL TAXES MAY 
BE LEVIED FOR SUCH TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE PURPOSES; 
TO PROVIDE FOR THE LEVY, ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION OF 
CERTAIN OTHER TAXES AND FEES; TO PROVIDE FOR THE 
EXPENDITURE OF SAID TAXES AND OTHER REVENUES COMING TO THE 
COUNTY DURING SAID FISCAL YEAR; AND TO PROVIDE FOR OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING TO ANDERSON COUNTY.  (TITLE ONLY) 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-028 
 
A RESOLUTION TO REQUEST AND SUPPORT THAT THE SOUTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL ASSEMBLY GRANT MUNICIPALITIES AND COUNTIES THE 
AUTHORITY TO ISSUE BUILDING CODES IN ADDITION TO EXISTING 
STATEWIDE BUILDING CODES OR AMEND BUILDING CODES ADOPTED BY THE 
BUILDING CODES COUNCIL; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, state regulation requires that all building codes used within the state shall be 
adopted by the Building Codes Council while local jurisdictions are prohibited from writing or 
publishing any other building codes in part or in whole; 
 
 WHEREAS, counties shall adopt the latest edition of nationally recognized codes for 
building, residential, gas, plumbing, mechanical, fire, and energy codes as made available by the 
Southern Building Code Congress International, Inc., and the National Electrical Code, which 
leaves no room for addition or modification of the referenced codes;  
 
 WHEREAS, counties may adopt the latest edition of national recognized codes for 
property maintenance, existing building and swimming pool codes as made available by the 
Southern Building Code Congress International, Inc., which leaves no room for addition or 
modification of the referenced codes; 
 

WHEREAS, local jurisdiction modification of the building code is restricted to necessary 
modifications based on physical or climatological conditions; 
 

WHEREAS, the county council acknowledges the benefit to the protection of public health 
and safety if counties possessed authority to add building code regulations in addition to the state 
issued regulations; and 
 

WHEREAS, the county council acknowledges a potential detriment to builders, 
contractors, architects, and engineers dealing with different county codes across the state and 
concludes any potential detriment is outweighed by the additional protection of public health and 
safety. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. The Anderson County Council formally requests that the general assembly grant 
municipalities and counties the authority to issue building codes in addition to existing statewide 
building codes or amend building codes adopted by the Building Codes Council provided that any 
amendments are no less stringent than those adopted by the Building Codes Council. 
 

 2.  Anderson County, as well as other counties in this State, will act in accordance with 
public policy by maintaining reasonable standards of construction in buildings and other structures 
in the State consistent with the public health, safety, and welfare of its citizens.   

 



 3. A copy of this Resolution shall be provided to the Anderson County Legislative 
Delegation.  
 
 4. Should any part or portion of this resolution be deemed unconstitutional or 
otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding shall not affect the 
remainder hereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable.  
 
 5. This resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon enactment.  
 
 RESOLVED this  _____ day of _______, 2022, in meeting duly assembled. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
              
Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   
 
 
       
       
Renee Watts 
Clerk to County Council 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
 


























































	Agenda CCM May 3, 2022
	2a R2022-026 Jacky Hunter
	2b R2022-027 National Public Works Week
	3 Minutes CCM April 19, 2022
	6a 2022-008 Evergreen Road
	6b 2022-013 Amend Chapter 38
	6c 2022-014 Duke Energy Ground Lease
	7a 2022-012 Highway 81 Logistics
	7b 2022-016 Transfer Real Property Three & Twenty Road
	7c 2022-017 Transfer Real Property Town of Iva
	7d 2022-018 Easement Duke Energy
	8a Budget TITLE ONLY
	R2022-028 Building & Codes
	10a Change Order Pavement Marking Contract
	10b RFQ #22-041 Toxaway Riverside Mill
	10c Bid #22-048 Resurfacing
	10d Bid #22-051 King David Expansion



